
Crook County Annex l 320 NE Court St. l Prineville OR
Members of the public and media are welcome to attend in person with social distancing
or via WebEx: Phone: 1-408-418-9388; Access Code: 126 538 6281; Meeting Password:
jEnpYBsq933

NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER
The Crook County Court is the governing body of Crook County, Oregon, and holds
public meetings (generally on the first and third Wednesday of each month) to
deliberate upon matters of County concern. As part of its efforts to keep the public
apprised of its activities, the Crook County Court has published this PDF file. This files
contains the material to be presented before the County Court for its next scheduled
regular meeting.

Please note that while County staff members make a dedicated effort to keep this file
up to date, documents and content may be added, removed, or changed between when
this file is posted online and when the County Court meeting is held. The material
contained herein may be changed at any time, with or without notice.

CROOK COUNTY MAKES NO WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING
ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ACCURACY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE, OR FOR ANY OTHER MATTER. THE COUNTY IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR
POSSIBLE ERRORS, OMMISSIONS, MISUSE, OR MISINTERPRETATION.

Please also note that this file does not contain any material scheduled to be discussed
at an executive session, or material the access to which may be restricted under the
terms of Oregon law.

If you are interested in obtaining additional copies of any of the documents contained
herein, they may be obtained by completing a Crook County Public Records Request
form. Request forms are available on the County's website or at the County

CROOK COUNTY COURT AGENDA
Wednesday, January 18, 2023 at 9:00 am

Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1



Administration office at 203 NE Court Street, in Prineville.

PUBLIC COMMENT

CONSENT AGENDA
(Consent agenda items are routine matters - e.g. minutes, appropriations orders,
contracts, agreements, completion of previously discussed matters and decisions
requiring Court ratification which are not expected to generate discussion. Any member
of the Court may request removal of an item for separate discussion or vote. All
remaining items are approved in a single motion.)

1. Approve Minutes
2. Approve Ancillary Services Agreement with Cigna
3. Approve Amendment 8 to Property Use License w/ OSU
4. Approve Personnel Action Form of Dennis Brewer
5. Approve Order 2023-05 Appointment to the Ag Extension Service District

Advisory Board
6. Approve Bids for Interior Repair Indoor Arena Kitchen
7. Approve Lean To Shop Expansion
8. Approve Bid - Grizzly Mountain Pavilion Expansion
9. Approval of New Position - Health Strategist III STI Coordinator

10. Approval of Position Reclassification - Communicable Disease Specialist
11. Approval of Position Reclassification - Administrative Assistant

DISCUSSION

12. Swearing in of Patrol Deputy Zachary Berger
Requester: Sheriff's Office

13. Approval of Order for Road Renaming within Phase 14 of Brasada Ranch.
Requester: Brent Bybee

14. Request Approval of Budget Calendar and Process
Requester: Andy Parks

15. Presentation by Government Portfolio Advisors
Requester: Christina Haron

16. PUBLIC HEARING: Ordinance 335, an ordinance ratifying the creation of an
ORS Chapter 190 intergovernmental entity entitled the "Crook County Road
Agency," and declaring an emergency - First and second reading. Becomes
effective immediately upon approval and Intergovernmental agreement with
City of Prineville creating the Crook County Road Agency.

17. PUBLIC HEARING: Application 217-22-002171-PLNG - First and second
readings of the proposed text amendments to Title 18 of the Crook County
Code recommended by the Planning Commission.
Requester: Brent Bybee

EXECUTIVE SESSION Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2



Additional items may be discussed that arise too late to be included as a part of this
notice. For information about adding agenda items, please contact the County
Administration office at 447-6555. Assistance to handicapped individuals is provided
with advance notice.

Contact: Seth Crawford (seth.crawford@co.crook.or.us (541) 447-6555) | Agenda published on
01/12/2023 at 3:23 PM

Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3



Crook County Court Work Session 
Minutes of December 20, 2022 Meeting  Page 1 

CROOK COUNTY COURT MINUTES  
OF DECEMBER 20, 2022 WORK SESSION 

Open Portion 
 
Be It Remembered that the Crook County Court met in a regularly scheduled Work 
Session on December 20,2022, at 9:00 a.m. in the Administration Conference room 
located at 203 NE Court Street, Prineville, Oregon 97754.   
 
Court Members Present:  Judge Seth Crawford, Commissioner Jerry Brummer and 
Commissioner Brian Barney 
Absentees:  None 
Others Present in Person or Via WebEx:  Legal Counsels Eric Blaine; Administration 
Executive Assistant Sarah Puerner; Human Resources Generalist Amy Albert; Legal 
Assistant Lindsay Azevedo; Assistant Finance Director Christina Haron; Director Kim 
Barber; Andy Parks; Sheriff John Gautney; Stephanie Wilson; Bill Elliot; Library 
Operations Managers Cindy York and Sean Briscoe; Bob O’Neal and Tim Deboodt.  
 

WORK SESSION 
 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 
Agenda Item #1, Public Comment: None 
 
Agenda Item #2: Sheriff’s Office Presentation of Strategic Plan Issues: 
Requester: Stephanie Wilson and Bill Elliot 
Details: The Sheriff’s Department prepared a PowerPoint presentation regarding their 
Strategic Plan Issues. The purpose and scope of discussion was to provide evidence-
based information of known and/or forecasted Sheriff’s Office operational needs. To 
further introduce a planning discussion of how to responsibly/fiscally plan and execute 
assessed budgetary, staffing, and retention needs. Ultimately, the Sherriff’s Department 
would like to create 7 new positions for the Jail; 6 of these positions will be existing 
Technical Deputies converted to new roles as Floor Deputies and 1 new position as 
Office Manager. In addition, the Sherriff’s Department would like to add 6 additional 
Deputies and 1 Office Deputy position to their Patrol.  
 
Agenda Item #3: Natural Resources Advisory Committee Recommendations: 
Requester: Tim Deboodt  
Details: Natural Resources Manager Tim Deboodt and the Natural Resources Advisory 
Committee recommended Bill McCormack, Kim Vogel, and Melinda Keastler to be 
appointed to the Natural Resources Advisory Committee for a four-year term. An Order 
will be drafted and presented at the December 21st County Court Meeting.  
 
MOTION to approve Bill McCormack, Kim Vogel, and Melinda Keastler to the Natural 
Resources Advisory Committee. Motion seconded. No further discussion. Motion 
carried 3-0. 
 

Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4



Crook County Court Work Session 
Minutes of December 20, 2022 Meeting  Page 2 

At 9:37 a.m. the Court read into Executive Session under the following statutes: ORS 
192.660(2)(d) To conduct deliberations with persons you have designated to carry on 
labor negotiations and ORS 192.660(2)(f) For the purpose of considering information or 
records that are exempt by law from public inspection. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
At the conclusion of the Executive Session, the County Court convened back into Open 
Session, inviting members of the public into the meeting room. 
 
MOTION to direct staff to prepare correspondence as discussed in the Executive 
Session.  Motion seconded.  No further discussion.  Motion carried 3-0.   
 
There being no further business before the Court, the meeting was adjourned at 
10:42 a.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Sarah Puerner 

Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5



Crook County Court Work Session 
Minutes of December 27, 2022 Meeting  Page 1 

CROOK COUNTY COURT MINUTES  
OF DECEMBER 27, 2022 WORK SESSION 

Open Portion 
 
Be It Remembered that the Crook County Court met in a regularly scheduled Work 
Session on December 27, 2022, at 9:00 a.m. in the Administration Conference room 
located at 203 NE Court Street, Prineville, Oregon 97754.   
 
Court Members Present:  Commissioner Jerry Brummer and Commissioner Brian 
Barney 
Absentees:  Judge Seth Crawford 
Others Present in Person or Via WebEx:  Legal Counsel Eric Blaine; Administration 
Executive Assistant Sarah Puerner; Legal Assistant Lindsay Azevedo; Manager Brent 
Bybee; Library Co-Managers Cindy York and Sean Briscoe; and Gail Merritt.  
 

WORK SESSION 
 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 
Agenda Item #1, Public Comment:  None 
 
Agenda Item #2, Planning Commission Committee Candidate Recommendation and 
Renewal:  Manager Brent Bybee presented that the Planning Commission Committee 
has two positions up for renewal and one position available for appointment. Mr. Bybee 
recommended Calvin Walter to be appointed to the committee and Mike Warren and 
LaQuita Stec to be re-appointed. An Order will be drafted and presented at the January 
4th County Court Meeting.  
 
MOTION to approve Calvin Walter, Mike Warren, and LaQuita Stec to the Planning 
Commission Committee.  Motion seconded.  No further discussion.  Motion carried 2-0.   
 
Agenda Item #3, Fair Board Committee Recommendation:  Chairperson Gail Merritt 
presented that the Fair Board Committee interviewed two applicants on Monday, 
December 19, 2022, and the committee voted unanimously in their regular meeting to 
recommend Susan Hermreck for appointment. Ms. Hermreck will fill the term of James 
Savage, who resigned from the board. An Order will be drafted and presented at the 
January 4th County Court Meeting.  
 
MOTION to approve Susan Hermreck to the Fair Board Committee.  Motion seconded.  
No further discussion.  Motion carried 2-0.   
 
Agenda Item #4, Approval for Rappel Towers – Department of Agriculture United 
States Forest Service Lease Amendment:  Commissioner Barney recommended that the 
Court approve the lease amendment #5 for the helibase at the Airport. This will permit 
USFS to construct two rappel towers for training purposes. The County will not be 
involved in the procurement, construction, or maintenance of the towers.  
 

Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6



Crook County Court Work Session 
Minutes of December 27, 2022 Meeting  Page 2 

MOTION to approve and accept lease amendment #5 for the construction and 
installation of two rappel towers for training purposes.  Motion seconded.  No further 
discussion.  Motion carried 2-0.   
 
There being no further business before the Court, the meeting was adjourned at 9:09 
a.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Sarah Puerner 
 
 

Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7



 
 

 
 

    
Date:  
January 9, 2023 
 
Meeting date desired:  
January 18, 2023 
 
Subject:  
Ancillary Services Agreement with Cigna Health 

 
Background and policy implications: 
Under the Agreement, Crook County is the provider of certain medical services and Cigna is 
the payor. The Agreement details the relationship between the parties as participants seek, 
receive, and pay for medical care. The Agreement has an addendum to comply with Oregon 
law and, on Exhibit A, a fee schedule. 
 
The County’s main obligations under the Agreement include providing services up to the 
local standard of care, maintaining the requisite insurance coverage, adhering to Cigna’s 
administrative and quality management guidelines, record retention, cooperation, and 
utilization management. While continuing indefinitely, either party may terminate upon 60 
days advance notice. 
 
Budget/fiscal impacts: 
TBD – See Exhibit A 
 
Requested by:  
John Eisler, Assistant County Counsel 
541-416-3919 
John.Eisler@co.crook.or.us 
 
Presenters: 
John Eisler 
 
Legal review (only if requested): 
Legal has reviewed. 
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 

Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8



ANC2021MCA.US Page 1 of 13 01/01/2022 
 

Ancillary Services Agreement 
 

This Ancillary Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is between Cigna Health and Life Insurance 
Company (“Cigna”) and Crook County Health Department  (“Provider”) and is effective upon 
Cigna’s execution and implementation of the Agreement into its administrative systems. 
Provider will be notified of the Effective Date via Cigna’s return of the signed contract to 

Provider, and will be indicated in the space below. 
 
Effective Date:  March 1, 2023 
 

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS 
 

1.1 Administrative Guidelines 
means the rules, policies and procedures adopted by Cigna or a Payor to be followed by 
Provider in providing services and doing business with Cigna and Payors under this 
Agreement. 
 

1.2 Benefit Plan 
means a certificate of coverage, summary plan description or other document or 
agreement which specifies the health care services to be provided or reimbursed for the 
benefit of a Participant. 
 

1.3 Cigna Affiliate 
means any subsidiary or affiliate of Cigna Corporation. 

 
1.4 Coinsurance 

means a payment that is the financial responsibility of the Participant under a Benefit 
Plan for Covered Services that is calculated as a percentage of the contracted 
reimbursement rate for such services or, if reimbursement is on a basis other than a fee-
for-service amount, as a percentage of a Cigna determined fee schedule or as a Cigna 
determined percentage of actual charges. 
 

1.5 Copayment 
means a payment that is the financial responsibility of the Participant under a Benefit 
Plan for Covered Services that is calculated as a fixed dollar amount.  

 
1.6 Covered Services 

means those health care services for which a Participant is entitled to receive coverage 
under the terms and conditions of the Participant’s Benefit Plan. 
 

1.7 Deductible 
means a payment for Covered Services calculated as a fixed dollar amount that is the 
financial responsibility of the Participant under a Benefit Plan prior to qualifying for 
reimbursement for subsequent health care costs under the terms of a Benefit Plan. 
 

1.8 Medically Necessary/Medical Necessity 

Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9



ANC2021MCA.US Page 2 of 13 01/01/2022 
 

means services and supplies that satisfy the Medical Necessity requirements under the 
applicable Benefit Plan. No service is a Covered Service unless it is Medically Necessary. 
 

1.9 Participant 
means any individual, or eligible dependent of such individual, whether referred to as 
"Insured", "Subscriber", "Member",  "Participant", "Enrollee", "Dependent", or similar 

designation, who is eligible and enrolled to receive Covered Services, or who is a 
continuing care patient as defined by applicable federal law. 
 

1.10 Participating Provider 
means a hospital, physician or group of physicians, or any other health care practitioner 
or entity that has a direct or indirect contractual arrangement with Cigna to provide 
Covered Services with regard to the Benefit Plan covering the Participant.  
 

1.11 Payor 
means the person or entity obligated to a Participant to provide reimbursement for 
Covered Services under the Participant’s Benefit Plan and which Cigna has agreed may 
access services under this Agreement. Cigna is the Payor only for Covered Services 

under an insurance policy or HMO contract issued by a Cigna company.  
 

1.12 Quality Management 
means the program described in the Administrative Guidelines relating to the quality of 
Covered Services provided to Participants. 
 

1.13 Utilization Management 
means a process to review and determine whether certain health care services provided 
or to be provided are Medically Necessary and in accordance with the Administrative 
Guidelines. 
 

SECTION 2. DUTIES OF PROVIDER 
 
2.1 Provider Services 

Provider shall provide Covered Services to Participants upon the terms and conditions 
set forth in this Agreement and the Administrative Guidelines. All services provided by 
Provider within the scope of Provider’s practice or license must be provided on a 

participating basis. Regardless of Provider’s physical location, all aspects of Provider’s 
practice are participating under the terms of this Agreement unless Covered Services are 
provided under the terms of another applicable Cigna participation agreement. 
 

2.2 Standards 
Provider shall provide Covered Services with the same standard of care, skill and 
diligence customarily used by similar providers in the community, the requirements of 
applicable law, and the standards of applicable accreditation organizations. Provider 
shall provide Covered Services to all Participants in the same manner, under the same 
standards, and with the same time availability as offered to other patients. Provider shall 
not differentiate or discriminate in the treatment of any Participant because of race, 
color, national origin, ancestry, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, age, 

Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10



ANC2021MCA.US Page 3 of 13 01/01/2022 
 

health status, veteran’s status, handicap or source of payment. Provider shall assure that 
all health care providers who perform any of the services for which Provider is 
responsible under this Agreement maintain all necessary licenses or certifications 
required by state and federal law. Provider shall immediately restrict, suspend, or 
terminate any such health care provider from providing services to Participants under 
this Agreement if such provider ceases to meet the licensing/certification requirements 

or other professional standards described in this Agreement. 
 

2.3 Insurance/Application for Participation Information 
Provider shall maintain general and professional liability coverage in a form and 
amount acceptable to Cigna, give Cigna evidence of such coverage upon request and 
provide Cigna with immediate written notice of a material modification or termination 
of such insurance. Provider shall also notify Cigna in writing within 30 days of any 
material change in the information contained in Provider’s application for participation 
with Cigna. 
 

2.4 Administrative Guidelines 
Provider shall comply with the Administrative Guidelines. Some or all Administrative 

Guidelines may be communicated in the form of a provider reference manual, in other 
written materials distributed by Cigna to Provider and/or at a website identified by 
Cigna. Administrative Guidelines may change from time to time. Cigna will give 
Provider advance notice of material changes to Administrative Guidelines. 
 

2.5 Quality Management 
Provider shall comply with the requirements of and participate in Quality Management 
as specified in the Administrative Guidelines. 
 

2.6 Utilization Management 
Provider shall comply with the requirements of and participate in Utilization 

Management as specified in this Agreement and the Administrative Guidelines. 
Payment may be denied for failure to comply with such Utilization Management 
requirements, and Provider shall not bill the Participant for any such denied payment. 
Cigna’s Utilization Management requirements include, but are not limited to, the 
following: a) precertification must be secured  from Cigna or its designee for those 
services and procedures for which it is required as specified in the Administrative 
Guidelines; b) Provider must provide Cigna or Cigna's designee with all of the 
information requested by Cigna or its designee to make its Utilization Management 
determinations within the timelines specified by Cigna or its designee in such request; 
and c) Provider will refer Participants to and/or use Participating Providers for the 
provision of Covered Services except in the case of an emergency or as otherwise 
required by law. If Provider inappropriately refers a Participant to a non-Participating 

Provider in a non-emergency situation without the Participant’s express written consent, 
and thereby cause the Participant to become responsible, for the charges of the non-
Participating Provider, or to incur more charges than if such care had been received 
from a Participating Provider, Cigna or a Cigna Affiliate may, in its sole discretion, 
satisfy the obligation to the non-Participating Provider for such services. If this occurs, 

Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11



ANC2021MCA.US Page 4 of 13 01/01/2022 
 

Cigna or a Cigna Affiliate may offset the amount paid to such non-Participating 
Provider for such services against future compensation payable to Provider.  
 

2.7 Records 
Provider shall maintain medical records and documents relating to Participants as may 
be required by applicable law and for the period of time required by law. Medical 

records of Participants and any other records containing individually identifiable 
information relating to Participants will be regarded as confidential, and Provider and 
Cigna shall comply with applicable federal and state law regarding such records. 
Provider will obtain Participants’ consent to or authorization for the disclosure of 
private and medical record information for any disclosures required under this 
Agreement if required by law. Upon request, Provider will provide Cigna with a copy of 
Participants’ medical records and other records maintained by Provider relating to 
Participants. These records shall be provided to Cigna at no charge and within the 
timeframes requested by Cigna and will also be made available during normal business 
hours for inspection by Cigna, Cigna's designee, accreditation organizations, or to any 
governmental agency that requires access to these records. This provision survives the 
termination of this Agreement. 

 
2.8 Cooperation with Cigna and Cigna Affiliates 

Provider shall cooperate with Cigna in the implementation of Cigna's Participant appeal 
procedure. Provider shall also cooperate with Cigna and Cigna Affiliates in 
implementing those policies and programs as may be reasonably requested by Cigna or 
a Cigna Affiliate for purposes of Cigna's or the Cigna Affiliate’s business operations or 
required by Cigna or a Cigna Affiliate to comply with applicable law or accreditation 
requirements. 
 

SECTION 3. DUTIES OF CIGNA 

 
3.1 Payors, Benefit Plan Types, Notice of Changes to Benefit Plan Types 

Cigna may allow Payors to access Provider’s services under this Agreement for the 
following Benefit Plan types: a) Benefit Plans where Participants are offered a network of 
Participating Providers and are required or given the option to select a Primary Care 
Physician; b) Benefit Plans where Participants are offered a network of Participating 
Providers and are not required or given the option to select a Primary Care Physician; 

and c) Benefit Plans where Participants are not offered a network of Participating 
Providers from which they may receive Covered Services. Benefit Plans may include 
workers’ compensation plans. Cigna will give Provider advance notice if Cigna changes 
this list of Benefit Plan types for which Payors may access Provider’s services under this 
Agreement. 
 

3.2 Benefit Information 
Cigna will give Provider access to benefit information concerning the type, scope and 
duration of benefits to which a Participant is entitled as specified in the Administrative 
Guidelines. 
 

3.3 Participant and Participating Provider Identification 
Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12



ANC2021MCA.US Page 5 of 13 01/01/2022 
 

Cigna will establish a system of Participant identification and will identify Participating 
Providers to those Payors and Participants who are offered a network of Participating 
Providers. However, Cigna makes no representations or guarantees concerning the 
number of Participants that will be referred to Provider as a result of this Agreement 
and reserves the right to direct Participants to selected Participating Providers and/or 
influence a Participant’s choice of Participating Provider.  

 
SECTION 4. COMPENSATION 

 
4.1 Payments 

Payments for Covered Services will be the lesser of the billed charge or the applicable 
fee under Exhibit A, subject to the Administrative Guidelines and minus any applicable 

Copayments, Coinsurance and Deductibles. The rates in this Agreement will be 
payment in full for all services furnished to Participants under this Agreement. Provider 
shall look solely to Payor for payment for Covered Services except for Copayments, 
Coinsurance and Deductibles. Provider shall submit claims for Covered Services at the 
location identified by Cigna and in the manner and format specified in this Agreement 
and the Administrative Guidelines. Claims for Covered Services must be submitted 
within 90 days of the date of service or, if Payor is the secondary payor, within 90 days 
of the date of the explanation of payment from the primary payor. Claims received after 
this 90 day period may be denied except as provided in the Administrative Guidelines, 
and Provider shall not bill Cigna, the Payor or the Participant for those denied services. 
Amounts due and owing under this Agreement with respect to complete claims for 
Covered Services will be payable within the timeframes required by applicable law. 

 
4.2 Underpayments 

If Provider believes a Covered Service has been underpaid, Provider must submit a 
written request for an appeal or adjustment with Cigna or its designee within 180 days 
from the date of Payor's payment or explanation of payment. The request must be 
submitted in accordance with the dispute resolution process set out in the 
Administrative Guidelines. Requests for appeals or adjustments submitted after this 
date may be denied for payment, and Provider will not be permitted to bill Cigna, the 
Payor or the Participant for those services. 
 

4.3 Copayments, Coinsurance and Deductibles 

Provider may charge Participants applicable Copayments, Coinsurance and Deductibles 
in accordance with the process set out in the Administrative Guidelines. 
 

4.4 Limitations on Billing Participants 
Provider agrees that in no event, including but not limited to nonpayment by Payor, 
Payor’s insolvency or breach of this Agreement shall Provider bill, charge, collect a 
deposit from, seek compensation, remuneration or reimbursement from, or have any 
recourse against Participants or persons other than the applicable Payor for Covered 
Services or for any amounts denied or not paid under this Agreement due to Provider’s 
failure to comply with the requirements of Cigna's or its designee’s Utilization 
Management Program or other Administrative Guidelines, or failure to file a timely 
claim or appeal. This provision does not prohibit collection of any applicable 

Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13



ANC2021MCA.US Page 6 of 13 01/01/2022 
 

Copayments, Coinsurance and Deductibles. This provision survives termination of this 
Agreement, is intended to be for the benefit of Participants, and supersedes any oral or 
written agreement to the contrary now existing or hereafter entered into between 
Provider and a Participant or persons acting on the Participant’s behalf. Modifications to 
this section will become effective no earlier than the date permitted by applicable law. 
 

4.5 Billing Patients Who Cease to Be Participants 
Provider may bill a patient directly for any services provided following the date that 
patient ceases to be a Participant, and Payor has no obligation to pay for services for 
such patients. 
 

4.6 Participant Incentives Prohibited 
Provider shall not directly or indirectly establish, arrange, encourage, participate in or 
offer any Participant incentive. 

(A) Participant Incentive means any arrangement by Provider:  
(1) to reduce or satisfy a Participant’s cost-sharing obligations (including, but 

not limited to Copayments, Deductible and/or Coinsurance); 
(2) to pay on behalf of or reimburse a Participant for any portion of the 

Participant’s costs for coverage under a policy or plan insured or 
administered by Cigna or a Cigna Affiliate; 

(3) that provides a Participant with any form of material, financial incentive 
(other than the reimbursement terms under this Agreement), to receive 
Covered Services from Provider or its affiliates. 

(B) In the event of non-compliance with this provision: 
(1) Cigna may terminate this Agreement, such non-compliance being a 

“material breach” of this Agreement; 
(2) Provider shall not be entitled to reimbursement under this Agreement 

with respect to Covered Services provided to a Participant in connection 
with a Participant Incentive, and; 

(3) Cigna may take such other action appropriate to enforce this provision. 
 

4.7 Non-Medically Necessary Services 
Provider shall not charge a Participant for a service that is not Medically Necessary 
unless, in advance of providing the service, Provider has notified the Participant that the 
particular service will not be covered and the Participant acknowledges in writing that 
he or she will be responsible for payment for such service.  
 

4.8 Reimbursement of Amounts Collected In Error 
If Provider collects payment from a Participant when not permitted to collect under 
either this Agreement or the Administrative Guidelines, Provider must repay the 
amount within 2 weeks of a request from Cigna or the Participant or of the date Provider 

has knowledge of the error. If Provider fails to make the repayments, then Cigna may 
(but is not obligated to) reimburse the Participant the amount inappropriately paid and 
then withhold this amount from future payments.  
 

4.9 Overpayments 

Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14



ANC2021MCA.US Page 7 of 13 01/01/2022 
 

Provider shall refund to Cigna any excess payment made by a Payor to Provider if 
Provider is for any reason overpaid for health care services or supplies. Cigna may, at its  
option, deduct the excess payment from other amounts payable, and Provider will be 
notified of any such deduction as specified in the Administrative Guidelines. 
 

4.10 Audits 

Upon reasonable notice and during regular business hours, Cigna or its designee will 
have the right to review and make copies of all records maintained by Provider with 
respect to all payments received by Provider from all sources for Covered Services 
provided to Participants. Cigna or its designee will have the right to conduct audits of 
such records and may audit its own records to determine if amounts have been properly 
paid under this Agreement. Any amounts determined to be due and owing as a result of 
such audits must be promptly paid or, at the option of the party to whom such amounts 
are owed, offset against amounts due and owing by such party hereunder. This 
provision survives the termination of this Agreement. 
 

4.11 Coordination of Benefits 
Certain claims for Covered Services are claims for which another payor may be 

primarily responsible under Coordination of Benefit (COB) rules. Provider may pursue 
those claims in accordance with the process set out in the Administrative Guidelines.  
 
Cigna's Payment as Secondary Payor (Non-Medicare) 
Cigna's payment when added to the amount payable from other sources under the 
applicable COB rules, will be no greater than the payment for Covered Services under 
the Cigna provider agreement, and is subject to the terms and conditions of the 
Participant's health benefit plan and applicable state and federal law. Use of applicable 
COB provisions may result in a payment from Cigna that, when added to the amount 
payable from other sources, is less than 100 percent of the payment for Covered Services 
under the Cigna provider agreement. Payment may, however, be in a lesser amount as 

determined by the terms of the participant's benefit plan. 
 
Medicare is the Primary Payor 
When the Cigna plan is the secondary payor to Medicare, Provider and Cigna are 
required to follow Medicare billing rules. Payment will be made in accordance with all 
applicable Medicare requirements, including but not limited to Medicare COB rules. The 
Medicare COB rules require Cigna's financial responsibility as the secondary payor to be 
limited to the Participant's financial liability (i.e., the applicable Medicare copayment, 
coinsurance, and/or deductible) after application of the Medicare-approved amount. 
The Medicare payment plus the Participant liability (applicable Medicare copayment, 
coinsurance, and/or deductible) amounts constitute payment in full, and Provider is 
prohibited from collecting any monies in excess of this amount. 

 
4.12 Applicability of the Rates 

The rates in this Agreement apply to all services provided to Participants in the Benefit 
Plan types covered by this Agreement, including services covered under a Participant's 
in or out-of-network benefits, and whether the Payor or Participant is financially 
responsible for payment 

Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15



ANC2021MCA.US Page 8 of 13 01/01/2022 
 

 
4.13 Excluded Services 

This Agreement excludes services that Cigna has elected to obtain under an 
arrangement between Cigna or a Cigna Affiliate and a national or regional vendor or 
provider or a capitated provider, except as otherwise agreed by Cigna. Provider will not 
be reimbursed and will not bill Participants for any such excluded services. If Cigna 

notifies Provider that it no longer chooses to exclude a particular service from this 
Agreement, that service will no longer be excluded and those services will be 
reimbursed as specified in Exhibit A. 
 

4.14 Provider Facilities 
This Agreement shall specifically exclude those services rendered at Provider facilities 
other than those facilities agreed upon and utilized as of the Effective Date unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by Cigna. 
 

SECTION 5. TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
5.1 Term of This Agreement 

This Agreement begins on the Effective Date and continues from year to year unless 
terminated as set forth below. 
 

5.2 How This Agreement Can Be Terminated 
Either Provider or Cigna can terminate this Agreement at any time by providing at least 
60 days advance written notice. Either Provider or Cigna can terminate this Agreement 

immediately if the other becomes insolvent. Cigna can terminate this Agreement 
immediately (or upon such longer notice required by applicable law, if any) if Provider 
no longer maintains the licenses required to perform its duties under this Agreement, 
Provider is disciplined by any licensing, regulatory, accreditation organization, or any 
other professional organization with jurisdiction over Provider, or if Provider no longer 
satisfies Cigna's credentialing requirements. Upon termination of this Agreement for 
any reason, the rights of each party terminate, except as provided in this Agreement. 
Termination will not release Provider or Cigna from obligations under this Agreement 
prior to the effective date of termination. 
 

5.3 Services upon Termination 

If this Agreement is terminated without cause, Provider shall continue to provide 
Covered Services for those Participants suffering from a chronic condition requiring 
continuity of care for whom an alternative means of receiving necessary care was not 
arranged at the time of such termination. Provider shall continue to provide Covered 
Services to such Participants so long as the Participant retains eligibility under a Benefit 
Plan, until the earlier of completion of such services or the assumption of treatment by 
another provider. Payment for Covered Services provided to any such Participant after 
termination of this Agreement shall be in accordance with the terms of the Participant's 
Benefit Plan. If, after termination of this Agreement, Provider determines that Cigna has 
not used due diligence to arrange for alternative care, Provider may terminate the 
provider-patient relationship. Provider has no obligation under this Agreement to 
provide services to individuals who cease to be Participants. 

Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16



ANC2021MCA.US Page 9 of 13 01/01/2022 
 

 
SECTION 6. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
6.1 Confidentiality 

As a result of this Agreement, Provider may have access to certain of Cigna's 
confidential and proprietary information. Provider shall hold such information, 
including the terms of this Agreement, in confidence and will not use or disclose such 
information to any person without the prior written consent of Cigna except as may be 
required by law. This provision shall not be construed to prohibit Cigna from disclosing 
information to Cigna Affiliates or the agents or subcontractors of Cigna or Cigna 
Affiliates or from disclosing the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including 
reimbursement rates, to existing or potential Payors, Participants or other customers of 

Cigna or Cigna Affiliates or their representatives. This provision does not prohibit 
communications necessary or appropriate for the delivery of health care services, 
communications about coverage and coverage appeal rights or any other 
communications specifically protected under applicable law. This provision survives the 
termination of this Agreement. 
 

6.2 Independent Parties 
Provider is an independent contractor. Cigna and Provider do not have an employer-
employee, principal-agent, partnership, or similar relationship. Nothing in this 
Agreement, including Provider’s participation in care collaboration, population 
management, pay for performance, Quality Management, Utilization Management, and 
other similar programs, nor any coverage determination made by Cigna or a Payor, is 

intended to interfere with or affect Provider’s independent judgment in providing 
health care services to its patients. Nothing in the Agreement is intended to create any 
right for Cigna or any other party to intervene in or influence your medical decision-
making regarding any Participant. 
 

6.3 Indemnification 
Each party agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other, its agents and 
employees from and against any and all liability or expense, including defense costs and 
legal fees, incurred in connection with third party claims for damages of any nature, 
including but not limited to bodily injury, death, personal injury, property damage, or 
other damages arising from the performance of or failure to perform, its obligations 

under this Agreement, unless it is determined that the liability was the direct 
consequence of negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the other party, its agents 
or employees. This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

6.4 Internal Dispute Resolution 
Disputes that might arise between the parties regarding the performance or 
interpretation of the Agreement must first be resolved through the applicable internal 
dispute resolution process outlined in the Administrative Guidelines. In the event the 
dispute is not resolved through that process, either party can request in writing that the 
parties attempt in good faith to resolve the dispute promptly by negotiation between 
designated representatives of the parties who have authority to settle the dispute. If the 
matter is not resolved within 60 days of such a request, either party may initiate 

Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17



ANC2021MCA.US Page 10 of 13 01/01/2022 
 

arbitration by providing written notice to the other. With respect to a payment or 
termination dispute (excluding termination with notice), Provider must submit a request 
for arbitration within 12 months of the date of the letter communicating the final 
decision under Cigna's internal dispute resolution process unless applicable law 
specifically requires a longer time period to request arbitration. If arbitration is not 
requested within that 12 month period, Cigna’s final decision under its internal dispute 

resolution process will be binding on Provider, and Provider shall not bill Cigna, Payor 
or the Participant for any payment denied because of the failure to timely submit a 
request for arbitration. 
 

6.5 Arbitration 
If the dispute is not resolved through Cigna's internal dispute resolution process, the 
controversy shall be resolved through binding arbitration. The arbitration shall be 
conducted in 60 days in accordance with the Rules of the American Arbitration 
Association then in effect, and which to the extent of the subject matter of the arbitration, 
shall be binding not only on all parties to the agreement, but on any other entity 
controlled by, in control of or under common control with the party to the extent that 
such affiliate joins in the arbitration, and judgment on the award rendered by the 

arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. Each party shall 
assume its own costs, but the compensation and expenses of the arbitrator and any 
administrative fees or costs shall be borne equally by the parties. The decision of the 
arbitrator shall be final, conclusive and binding, and no action at law or in equity may be 
instituted by either party other than to enforce the award of the arbitrator. The parties 
intend this alternative dispute resolution procedure to be a private undertaking and 
agree that an arbitration conducted under this provision shall not be consolidated with 
an arbitration involving other parties, and that the arbitrator shall be without power to 
conduct an arbitration on a class basis. 
 

6.6 Material Adverse Change Amendments 

For amendments that are a material adverse change in the terms of this Agreement, 
Cigna can amend this Agreement by providing 90 days advance written notice except if 
a shorter notice period is required to comply with changes in applicable law. The change 
will become effective at the end of the 90 day notice period or, if applicable, the shorter 
notice period required to comply with changes in applicable law. If Provider objects to 
the material adverse change and notifies Cigna of its intent to terminate within 30 days 
of the date of the notice of amendment, the termination will be effective at the end of the 
90 day notice of the material adverse change or, if applicable, at the end of the shorter 
notice period required to comply with changes in applicable law, unless Cigna agrees to 
retract the amendment, in which case the Agreement will remain in force without the 
proposed amendment. 
 

6.7 All Other Amendments 
For amendments that are not material adverse changes in the terms of this Agreement, 
Cigna can amend this Agreement by providing 30 days advance written notice to 
Provider. Alternatively, both parties can agree in writing to amend this Agreement. 
 

6.8 Assignment and Delegation 
Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18



ANC2021MCA.US Page 11 of 13 01/01/2022 
 

Neither Cigna nor Provider may assign any rights or delegate any obligations under this 
Agreement without the written consent of the other party; provided, however, that any 
reference to Cigna includes any successor in interest and Cigna may assign its duties, 
rights and interests under this Agreement in whole or in part to a Cigna Affiliate or may 
delegate any and all of its duties to a third party in the ordinary course of business. 
 

6.9 Sale of Business/Change in Management 
If, during the term of this Agreement, Provider desires (i) to sell, transfer or convey its 
business or any substantial portion of its business assets to another entity, or Provider is 
the subject of a sale, transfer or conveyance of its business by another entity, or (ii) 
Provider enters into a management contract with another entity, Provider shall so advise 
Cigna in writing at least 120 days prior to the transaction effective date in order to obtain 
Cigna's written consent as to which Cigna participating provider agreement applies, if 
any, to services rendered by you or the surviving entity, on a post-transaction basis. 
Failure to provide advance notification and obtain Cigna's written consent will result in 
Cigna determining which, if any, Cigna participating provider agreement applies to 
services rendered on a post-transaction basis. Dependent upon when Cigna learns of the 
transaction, this may result in a retroactive adjustment to reimbursement and an 

overpayment recovery process. Provider warrants and covenants that this Agreement 
will be part of the transfer, and will be assumed by the new entity and that the new 
entity will honor and be fully bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement 
unless the new entity already has an agreement with Cigna or a Cigna Affiliate, in which 
case Cigna, in its sole discretion, will determine which Agreement will prevail. 
Notwithstanding the above, if Cigna, in its sole discretion, is of the opinion that the 
Agreement cannot be satisfactorily performed by the assuming entity or does not want 
to do business with that entity for whatever reason, Cigna may terminate this 
Agreement by giving Provider 60 days written notice, notwithstanding any other 
provision in the Agreement. 
 

6.9.1 This Agreement shall not, without Cigna's written consent, be applicable to any 
hospital, physician or physician group or ancillary provider that is acquired 
(directly or indirectly) by or enters into a management, co-management, 
professional services, leasing, joint venture or similar agreement or arrangement 
with Provider or Provider affiliate. Provider shall notify Cigna 120 days in 
advance of any such acquisition or arrangement. 

 
6.10 Use of Name 

Provider agrees that Cigna may include descriptive information about Provider in 
literature distributed to existing or potential Participants, Participating Providers and 
Payors. That information will include, but not be limited to, Provider’s name, telephone 
number, address, and specialties. Provider may identify itself as a Participating Provider 

with respect to those Benefit Plan types in which Provider participates with Cigna. 
Provider’s use of Cigna's name or a Cigna Affiliate's name, or any other use of 
Provider’s name by Cigna will be upon prior written approval or as the parties may 
agree. 
 

6.11 Notices 
Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19



ANC2021MCA.US Page 12 of 13 01/01/2022 
 

Any notice required under this Agreement must be in writing and sent by United States 
mail, postage prepaid, to Cigna and Provider at the addresses below. Cigna may also 
notify Provider by sending an electronic notice with automatic receipt verification to 
Provider’s e-mail address below. Either party can change the address for notices by 
giving written notice of the change to the other party in the manner just described.  
 

6.12 Governing Law/Regulatory Addenda 
Applicable federal law and the law of the jurisdiction where Provider is domiciled 
governs this Agreement. One or more regulatory addenda may be attached to the 
Agreement setting out provisions that are required by law with respect to Covered 
Services rendered to certain Participants (i.e. Participants under an insured plan). These 
provisions are incorporated into this Agreement to the extent required by law and as 
specified in such Addenda. 
 

6.13 Force Majeure 
In the event that performance by either Cigna or Provider of any covenant, duty or 
obligation imposed under this Agreement becomes impossible or impracticable because 
of the occurrence of an event of force majeure, including, without limitation, acts of war, 

insurrection, civil strife and commotion, labor unrest, sentinel event, or acts of God, then 
performance of such covenant, duty or obligation by such party shall be excused during 
the continuance of such event of force majeure; provided, however, that such 
performance by such party shall be accomplished as soon as reasonably practicable after 
such event of force majeure has ceased. 
 

6.14 Waiver of Breach/Severability/Entire Agreement/Copy of Original Agreement 
If any party waives a breach of any provision of this Agreement, it will not operate as a 
waiver of any subsequent breach. If any portion of this Agreement is unenforceable for 
any reason, it will not affect the enforceability of any remaining portions. This 
Agreement, including any exhibits to this Agreement, contains all of the terms and 

conditions agreed upon and supersedes all other agreements between the parties, either 
oral or in writing, regarding the subject matter. A copy of this fully executed Agreement 
is an acceptable substitute for the original fully executed Agreement. 
 

AGREED AND ACCEPTED BY:   

Provider  Cigna 

Crook County Health Department  Cigna Health and Life Insurance Company 

375 NW Beaver Street 

Suite 100 
Prineville, OR 97754 

  

920 5th Ave, Suite 1350 
Seattle, WA 98104 

Address  Address 

wmccoy@h.co.crook.or.us   

Provider Email Address   

Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20



ANC2021MCA.US Page 13 of 13 01/01/2022 
 

   

Name  Name 

   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

   

Title  Title 

   

Date Signed  Date Signed 

93-6002290   

Federal Tax ID   

1841304920,1295480101   

National Provider Identifier   

Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21



 

OR.STATE.AMD.2022 Page 1 of 3 07/15/2022 
 

ADDENDUM TO PROVIDER AGREEMENT 
FOR THE STATE OF OREGON 

 

The provisions set forth in this Addendum are being added to the Agreement with the provider 
named in the Agreement (hereafter referred as “Provider”) to comply with legislative and 
regulatory requirements of the State of Oregon regarding provider contracts with providers 
rendering health care services in the State of Oregon. To the extent that such Oregon laws and 
regulations are applicable and/or not otherwise preempted by federal law, the provisions set 
forth in this Addendum shall apply and, to the extent of a conflict with a provision in the 
Agreement, shall control. The provisions of the Addendum shall apply to all providers 
governed by the Agreement, unless the context dictates otherwise. The provisions set forth in 
this Addendum do not apply with regard to Covered Services rendered to Participants covered 

under self-funded plans. 
 

I 
 

1. Provider shall mean “Provider,” “Hospital,” or “Group and/or Represented Provider,” 
as named in the Agreement, or as otherwise set forth in the Agreement.  
 

II 
 

(1) Cigna, upon request by Provider, shall give Provider an annual accounting accurately 
summarizing the financial transactions between the parties for that year. 
 

(2) Provider may withdraw from the care of a Participant when, in the professional 
judgment of Provider, it is in the best interest of the Participant to do so.  
 

(3) Upon request by Provider, the criteria used in the Utilization Management review 
process and the method of development of the criteria shall be made available for 
review. 
 

(4) Cigna shall employ or retain a physician licensed under ORS 677.100 to 677.228 who 
shall be responsible for all final medical and mental health decisions relating to coverage 
or payment made pursuant to the Agreement. 
 

(5) Provider will be paid for Covered Services rendered to Participants in accordance with 

ORS Sec. 743B.450 and ORS Sec. 743B.452. 
 

(6) In the event Cigna fails to pay for health care services covered by the Benefit Plan, 
Provider shall not bill or otherwise attempt to collect from Participants amounts owed 
by Cigna, and Participants shall not be liable to Provider for any sums owed by Cigna.  
 

(7) Cigna may not terminate or otherwise financially penalize Provider for: 
 

(1) Providing information to or communicating with a Participant in a manner that 
is not slanderous, defamatory or intentionally inaccurate concerning:  
 

Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22



 

OR.STATE.AMD.2022 Page 2 of 3 07/15/2022 
 

(a.) Any aspect of the Participant's medical condition; 
 

(b.) Any proposed treatment or treatment alternatives, whether covered by 
the Participant's Benefit Plan or not; or 
 

(c.) Provider's general financial arrangement with Cigna. 

 
(2) (a.) Referring a Participant to another provider, whether or not that provider 

 is under contract with Cigna. If Provider refers Participant to another  
 provider, Provider shall: 
 

(i) Comply with Cigna's written policies and procedures with respect 
to any such referrals; and 
 

(ii) Inform the Participant that the referral services may not be 
covered by Cigna. 
 

(b.) Allocation of costs for referral services shall be a matter of contract 

between Provider and Cigna. Allocation of costs to Provider by contract 
shall not be considered a penalty under this section. 
 

(8) Cigna and Provider shall provide continuity of care to Participants as provided in ORS 
Sec. 743B.225. 
 

(9) Except in cases of fraud or abuse of billing, Payor may not request a refund from 
Provider of a payment previously made to satisfy a claim unless Payor does so in 
writing, specifying the reasons for the request, within 18 months after the date the 
payment was made. If Payor requests a refund for reasons related to coordination of 
benefits with another health insurer or entity responsible for payment of a claim, the 

request for refund must be made in writing, specifying the reasons for the request, 
within 30 months after the date the payment was made. If Provider fails to contest the 
request for a refund in writing to Cigna or Payor within thirty (30) days of receipt, the 
request for refund shall be deemed accepted and the refund must be paid. 
 

(10) Except in cases of fraud, Provider may not request additional payment from Payor to 
satisfy a claim unless Provider does so in writing, specifying the reasons for the request, 
within 18 months after the date the claim was denied or the payment intended to satisfy 
the claim was made. If Provider requests additional payment from Payor to satisfy a 
claim for reasons related to coordination of benefits with another health insurer or entity 
responsible for payment of a claim, the request for additional payment must be made in 
writing, specifying the reasons for the request, within 30 months after the date the claim 

was denied or payment intended to satisfy the claim was made. 
 

(11) The Agreement may permit network arrangements which grant access to Cigna's rights 
as a contracting entity, as defined in applicable state laws and regulations, to Provider’s 
health care services and discounted rates to a third party, as defined in applicable state 
laws and regulations, provided that the third party accessing Provider’s health care 

Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23



 

OR.STATE.AMD.2022 Page 3 of 3 07/15/2022 
 

services and discounted rates is contractually obligated to comply with all applicable 
terms, limitations and conditions of the Agreement. 
 

(12) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary set forth in the Compensation section of 
the Agreement, or any similar provision in the Agreement, or a rate exhibit, the rates in 
the Agreement will be payment in full for all Covered Services furnished to Participants 

under the Agreement by a Provider who is a vision care provider as defined by 
applicable state laws and regulations. 

Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24



 

 Page 1 of 3  
 

Cigna 
 

EXHIBIT A  
 

Fee Schedule and Reimbursement Terms 
 

This is an Exhibit to an Agreement between:   

Provider:  Crook County Health Department 
Cigna Party:  Cigna Health and Life Insurance Company 
Effective Date of Base Agreement:  March 1, 2023 
 
This Rate Exhibit:   
Applies to:  Crook County Health Department 
Federal Tax ID:  93-6002290 
National Provider Identifier:  1841304920,1295480101 
Effective Date:  March 1, 2023 
  
I. DEFINITIONS 

 
Cigna Resource Based Relative Value Scale or Cigna RBRVS means the methodology 
designated by Cigna to produce the allowable fee for certain Covered Services rendered to 
Participants that uses the components of Relative Value Units (RVU’s), geographic practice 
cost indices (GPCI’s), conversion factor and base relativity factors, as defined by Cigna. 
 

Cigna Standard Fee Schedule means the standard Cigna fee schedule applicable to the 
provider types (e.g. MD, DO, NP, PA etc.) as designated by Cigna in effect at the time of 
service and applicable to this Agreement for certain Covered Services provided to 
Participants. The Cigna Standard Fee Schedule is subject to change.  
 

II. FEE FOR SERVICE REIMBURSEMENT 

 
A. Except as otherwise provided below, Covered Services will be reimbursed at the lesser 

of 100% of billed charges or the Cigna RBRVS allowable fee, less applicable Copayments, 
Deductibles and Coinsurance. The Cigna RBRVS allowable fees are updated periodically 
by Cigna to reflect new information regarding RVU’s, GPCI’s, conversion factor, and the 
addition of new codes and services. The GPCI locality used for this Agreement is 
Portland, OR. 
 

B. Cigna will apply the following base relativity factors in its Cigna RBRVS calculation to 
the services specified below. Provider agrees to identify the actual rendering provider’s 
name that provided services to Participant on the claim submission to Cigna: 

 
CPT Procedure Code Group Base Relativity Factor 

Surgery Codes 100.4% 

Evaluation & Management Codes 100.4% 

Medicine Codes 100.4% 

Physical Therapy 100.4% 
Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25



 

 Page 2 of 3  
 

CPT Procedure Code Group Base Relativity Factor 

Radiology Codes, except high tech radiology 
including but not limited to MRI, PET and 
CAT 

100.4% 

 
C. The following services, as defined within the Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) 

coding system published by the American Medical Association and the Healthcare 
Common Procedure Coding System (HCPCS) published by the Centers for Medicare & 
Medicaid Services, are excluded from the reimbursement methodology described above, 
and such Covered Services, if not specified above, will be reimbursed at the lesser of 
100%of billed charges or the applicable fee under the Cigna Standard Fee Schedule, less 
applicable Copayments, Deductibles and Coinsurance. 
 
Injectable Drugs, Immunizations, Vaccines, Toxoids 

 
Immunization Administration 
 
All High Tech Radiology (including but not limited to CAT Scans, Magnetic Resonance 
Imaging, Positron Emission Tomography) 
 
Pathology and Laboratory Services 
 
Routine Venipuncture 
 
All Services (excluding injectable medications) defined within the Healthcare Common 

Procedure Coding System (HCPCS) Schedule. 
 

D. The following services are excluded from the reimbursement methodology described 
above, and such Covered Services will be reimbursed at the lesser of  100% of billed 
charges or the fee listed below, less applicable Copayments, Deductibles and 
Coinsurance. The services and fees listed below remain unchanged unless changed by 
amendment (i.e., changes to existing fees and/or the addition of fees for new codes). 
Any such amendment will be on a prospective basis only. 

 
Coding Description Site of Service (SOS) 

Designation 
Reimbursement 

99502 32 Comprehensive 
newborn nurse home 
visit and optional 
support newborn 
home visits, 
Newborn #1 

Not Applicable $1,192.00 

99502 32 TT Comprehensive 
newborn nurse home 
visit and optional 
support newborn 
home visits, each 

Not Applicable $190.72 

Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26



 

 Page 3 of 3  
 

Coding Description Site of Service (SOS) 
Designation 

Reimbursement 

additional newborn 

99502 32 TD A single support 
newborn home visit 
occurring before the 
comprehensive 
newborn nurse home 

visit 

Not Applicable $274.16 

 
E. All procedure codes for Covered Services for which reimbursement has not been 

established above, including but not limited to those for unlisted procedures as well as 

new Current Procedural Terminology (CPT), Healthcare Common Procedure Coding 
System (HCPCS) and/or American Society of Anesthesiologists (ASA) procedure codes, 
will be paid at a 50% reduction from billed charges, less applicable Copayments, 
Deductibles and Coinsurance until such time as the applicable RVU’s have been loaded 
into the appropriate claims systems. 
 

F. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth above, those services that are 
excluded from this Agreement under the Excluded Services section of the Agreement 
shall not be reimbursed and Participants shall not be billed for such services.  
 

G. Notwithstanding the above, Cigna will apply site of service claim adjudication and the 
applicable reimbursement for place of service billed. 

 
H. For workers’ compensation Benefit Plans, the Cigna Standard Fee Schedule shall not 

exceed the state fee schedule. 
 

I. The reimbursement terms set forth in this Exhibit are applicable to all services rendered 
as part of your practice or scope of license. Any services provided by an out of network 
provider or vendor as part of your practice or scope of license are not separately 
reimbursable. 
 

Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27



 
 

 
 

    
Date:  
January 9, 2023 
 
Meeting date desired:  
January 18, 2023 
 
Subject:  
Extension to Property Use License with OSU. 

 
Background and policy implications: 
The County and OSU have had an agreement in place since 2015 allowing OSU to use the 
Fairgrounds to conduct Oregon ATV Safety Youth Rider Endorsement classes.  This will be the 
8th extension.  OSU has reviewed and approved the amendment and will sign after the 
County. 

 
Budget/fiscal impacts: 
N/A 
 
Requested by:  
Lindsay Azevedo, Paralegal II/Office Manager 
541-416-3919 
Lindsay.Azevedo@co.crook.or.us 
 
Presenters: 
Eric Blaine 
 
Legal review (only if requested): 
Legal drafted the amendment. 
 
Elected official sponsor (if applicable): 
N/A 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 

Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28



Page 1 of 2  --  PROPERTY USE LICENSE – Amendment 8 

Amendment 8 
to  

PROPERTY USE LICENSE 
 
 

 This Amendment 8 to the Property Use License (hereinafter “Amendment 8”) is 
entered into retroactively on January 1, 2023, by and between Crook County, a political 
subdivision of the State of Oregon (hereinafter “LICENSOR”), and Oregon State 
University (hereinafter “UNIVERSITY”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

 A. LICENSOR and UNIVERSITY are parties to a Property Use License 
agreement dated February 12, 2015 (the “LICENSE”) with respect to UNIVERSITY’s use 
of LICENSOR’s property to conduct Oregon ATV Safety Youth Rider Endorsement 
classes; and 
 
 B. LICENSOR AND UNIVERSITY have previously amended the LICENSE to 
modify its terms and extend its duration; and  
 
 C. LICENSOR and UNIVERSITY now desire to extend the duration and 
amend the terms of the LICENSE as set forth in this Amendment 8.   
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 
 1. Extended Term:  Paragraph 4 of the LICENSE is hereby amended to 
extend the expiration date to December 31, 2023. 
 
 2. Unavailable Dates:  Paragraph 5 of the LICENSE shall be deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

“UNIVERSITY agrees not to conduct activities on the property on the following 
dates: 

▪ June 11 through 25, 2023;  
▪ July 9 through 16, 2023; 
▪ August 1 through 13, 2023; 
▪ Any other date set by LICENSOR at LICENSOR’s sole discretion.” 

 
 3. Reaffirmation of Contract:  Except as modified by this Amendment 8, all 
terms and conditions of the LICENSE and all prior amendments are reaffirmed and 
remain unmodified and in full force and effect. 
 
 4. Counterparts:  This Amendment 8 may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, including electronically transmitted counterparts, which when taken 

Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29



Page 2 of 2  --  PROPERTY USE LICENSE – Amendment 8 

together shall constitute one in the same original.  Facsimiles and electronic 
transmittals of the signed document shall be binding as though they were an original of 
such signed document. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment 8 to be effective 
on the date first set forth above. 
 
 
OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY 
 
 
By:        

         ______________  
 

Title:   __________________ 

Date:      

 

CROOK COUNTY COURT 
 
 
      
Seth Crawford, County Judge 
 
      
Jerry Brummer, County Commissioner 
 
      
Brian Barney, County Commissioner 
 
 
Date:        
 

 

Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30



Date: 
 

Meeting date desired:  
 

Subject:  
 

Background and policy implications: 
  

Budget/fiscal impacts: 

Requested by:  

Presenters: 

Legal review (only if requested): 

Elected official sponsor (if applicable): 
I

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 

Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31



Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32



Date: 
 

Meeting date desired:  
 

Subject:  
 

Background and policy implications: 
  

Budget/fiscal impacts: 

Requested by:  

Presenters: 

Legal review (only if requested): 

Elected official sponsor (if applicable): 
I

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 

Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33



PAGE 1 OF 1 – ORDER 2023-05 

 
 
 
 

IN THE COUNTY COURT OF THE STATE OF OREGON 
 

FOR THE COUNTY OF CROOK 
 
 

IN THE MATTER OF THE  
APPOINTMENT TO AG EXTENSION 
SERVICE DISTRICT ADVISORY 
BOARD 

ORDER 2023-05 

 
 
 WHEREAS, volunteers are essential to the operation of the county government; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Court has carefully considered the skills and talents of the applicants 
and the needs of the boards which has a vacancy requiring appointments, and based upon 
recommendation of Boards and Committees: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby ORDERED that that the Crook County Court 
makes the following appointment to the Ag Extension Service District Advisory Board: 
 

Board Appointee Term Oath required 
Ag Extension Service District 
Advisory Board 
Position #8 

Susan Hermreck 3 Year Term 
Expiring: 12/31/2025 

Yes 

 
 
 DATED this 18th day of January 2023. 
 
 
 
_______             
Seth Crawford  Jerry Brummer   Brian Barney 
County Judge  County Commissioner  County Commissioner 

Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34



Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35



Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36



Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37



Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38



Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39



Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40



Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41



Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42



Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43



Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44



Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45



Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46



Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47



Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48



Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49



Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50



Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51



Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52



Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53



Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54



Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55



Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56



Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57



Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58



Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59



Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60



Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61



Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62



Date: 
 

Meeting date desired:  
 

Subject:  
 

Background and policy implications: 
  

Budget/fiscal impacts: 

Requested by:  

Presenters: 

Legal review (only if requested): 

Elected official sponsor (if applicable): 
I

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 

Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63



Central Oregon STI/HIV  
Outreach Coordinator 

JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

 
Last Updated: 1/11/2023 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
Department:  Crook County Health Department 
Reports To: Clinic Supervisor 
Classification: Non-exempt 
Salary Grade:  
 
Summary 
The primary duties of this position are to work regionally in Crook, Deschutes and Jefferson counties to 
implement the Central Oregon Health Council funded project to decrease STI/HIV rates. The position will work 
closely with internal and community stakeholders and partners to achieve programmatic priorities in ways that 
are: 

• Equitable, 
• Culturally informed,  
• Developmentally appropriate,  
• Trauma-informed,  
• Data-driven, 
• And as comprehensive and sustainable as possible. 

This position requires the application of specialized knowledge in adult education and learning styles as well as 
working knowledge of effective health promotion and behavior change strategies.  

Essential Job Functions  
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential 
functions. 
 
Community and Stakeholder Engagement 
1. Organize and facilitate a Community Advisory Board  
2. Participate with internal and community stakeholders and partners to achieve programmatic priorities 
3. Coordinate with medical providers and health care systems regarding training and increased testing 
 
Program Implementation 
1. Implement programs in compliance with regulatory, grant and state requirements 
2. Establish performance benchmarks for projects 
3. Promote PrEP and nPEP navigation services to the community 
4. Link patients to healthcare and other supportive services 
5. Provide compassionate work with Disease Investigation Specialists (DIS) to increase client health literacy 

and education 
6. Work with epidemiologist to provide active surveillance of targeted populations 
7. Assess, plan, coordinate, implement, and evaluate health education services, materials and programs to 

ensure achievement of the region’s work plan and outcome goals 
8. Develop and provide prevention trainings and/or educational programs and services 
 
Documentation and Reporting 
1. Complete timely and accurate case and data entry 
2. Competently use electronic medical record documentation process Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64



Central Oregon STI/HIV  
Outreach Coordinator 

JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

 
Last Updated: 1/11/2023 

Page 2 of 4 
 

3. Oversee work plans and complete required grant reports 
 
General 
1. Maintain regular and predictable work attendance 
2. Assist with emergency response as needed 
3. Coverage may include late evening and weekend hours 
 
Public Health Preparedness:  
1. Complete Public Health Preparedness Training: IS 100, 200, 700, and 800 
2. Participate in Public Health Preparedness exercises and events  

Competencies 
1. Technical Capacity:  Equipment uses – personal computer and related software, telephone, 

printer/copier/facsimile. 
o Use of computers for word processing, data entry and analysis, Microsoft Outlook, and a variety 

of software applications 
2. Knowledge of principles and practices of reproductive health and public health including 

health maintenance and disease prevention; the effects of physical, social, and 
emotional factors on health; principles and techniques of teaching, counseling, 
interviewing; resources available through other health and welfare agencies; integration 
and linkages between community agencies.  

3. Foundational knowledge of diversity, equity, and inclusion principles; and trauma 
informed care practices  

4. Knowledge of adult education and learning styles 
5. Ability and skill in working with the public, including excellent customer service and de-escalation  
6. Teamwork and Collaboration: Ability to work in a team setting collaboratively and promote a positive 

work environment that aligns with the department vision, mission, and guiding principles. 
7. Time Management:  Ability to work in a fast-paced environment and meet deadlines. 
8. Communication Proficiency:  Ability to communicate effectively in both verbal and written form.  Learn 

and explain established policies and procedures using judgement and diplomacy. 
9. Flexibility:  Ability to adapt quickly and work evenings and weekends as necessary.  Ability to travel as 

needed. 
10. Ethical Conduct:  Ability to maintain confidentiality, abide by county/state and federal laws with 

knowledge of Public Health and county rules. 
11. Initiative:  Ability to work independently and initiate new or innovative public health strategies.  
12. Data collection and interpretation skills 

Performance Indicators 
1. Effective convening of regional Advisory Group 
2. Contribution to Quality Improvement processes 
3. Timely submission of reporting requirements for each assigned program, including recorded outcomes 

in VMSG database 
4. Engagement in Regional Health Improvement Plan efforts 

 
Supervisory Responsibility  Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65



Central Oregon STI/HIV  
Outreach Coordinator 

JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

 
Last Updated: 1/11/2023 

Page 3 of 4 
 

This position has no supervisory responsibilities. 

Work Environment  
This is primarily a clinical role, with some sedentary work; however, some filing, lifting and carrying will be 
required. This role routinely uses standard office equipment such as computers, phones, photocopiers, filing 
cabinets and fax machines. Ability to work in a fast-paced environment and off-site for clinics.  

Physical Demands  
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully 
perform the essential functions of this job. 

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to talk or hear. The employee is 
frequently required to sit; stand; walk; lift; use hands to finger, handle or feel; and reach with hands and arms. 
Ability to lift up to 20 pounds, twist, and bend.   

Position Type and Expected Hours of Work  
This is a full-time position. Typical days and hours of work are Monday through Friday, 8:00am to 5:00pm  

Travel  
Local and regional travel for is to be expected. 
 
Required Education and Experience  

• Bachelor’s Degree in a health or education field; AND 

• Three (3) years of related experience  

OR 

• Any equivalent combination of training, education, and experience that provides the required skills and 
knowledge to perform the job. 

Preferred Education and Experience  
• Experience and knowledge in STI/HIV programming 
• Bilingual 

 
Additional Eligibility Requirements 

• Must hold a valid Oregon driver’s license 
• Able to complete a thorough employment and/or criminal history check 
• Final candidates will be required to provide official proof of college degree and certified transcripts (not 

required for all positions) 
 

Safety Sensitive Requirements 
• This position is considered to be a safety sensitive position subject to drug screen(s) and adherence to all 

vaccine/immunity requirements for the healthcare setting. 
 

AAP/EEO Statement  Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66



Central Oregon STI/HIV  
Outreach Coordinator 

JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

 
Last Updated: 1/11/2023 

Page 4 of 4 
 

• This position is ‘at-will’, and either Crook County or the employee may terminate the relationship at any 
time with or without cause.  

• Crook County is an equal opportunity employer 
 

Other Duties 
• Please note this job description is not designed to cover or contain a comprehensive listing of activities, 

duties or responsibilities that are required of the employee for this job. Duties, responsibilities and 
activities may change at any time with or without notice. 

Signatures 
The employee signature below constitutes employee’s understanding of the requirements, essential functions 
and duties of the position. 
 
Employee Print Name:        Date:      
 
Employee Signature:        Date:      
 
Supervisor/HR Signature:       Date:      
 

Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67



Date: 
 

Meeting date desired:  
 

Subject:  
 

Background and policy implications: 
  

Budget/fiscal impacts: 

Requested by:  

Presenters: 

Legal review (only if requested): 

Elected official sponsor (if applicable): 
I

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 

Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68



 
 

Communicable Disease Specialist 
(Immunization Coordinator) 

JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

Department:  Health Department 
Reports To:  Clinic Supervisor 
Classification: Non-Exempt 
Salary Grade: 118 
 
Summary 
This position will work collaboratively on a variety of public health initiatives in support of the 
department-wide mission to …provide fair opportunity to those in our community to achieve 
their full health potential. The Communicable Disease Specialist will serve as the County 
Immunization Coordinator, perform communicable disease investigations, and support regular 
clinic operations.  
 
Essential Job Functions 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform 
the essential functions. 
 
Immunization Coordinator 

• Understand terms and concepts associated with childhood and adult immunization and 
the diseases they prevent 

• Describe and apply current Oregon Health Division Immunization Schedule for specific 
ages 

• Describe and demonstrate proper vaccine storage and handling 
• Coordinate, manage, and maintain correct inventory of vaccines in ALERT, Oregon’s 

statewide immunization registry 
• Correctly order and maintain immunizations for clinic use and for state-supported 

vaccine clinics 
• Interpret Oregon School Law accurately and implement standards for sites required to 

report in Oregon (i.e. annual school exclusion) 
• Communicate effectively and accurately with media outlets in accordance with 

department policy 
• Understand terms and concepts related to Incident Command Systems (ICS) and 

Emergency Operations Center (EOC) functions 
• Competent in administrative tasks using various computer programs, teleconferencing, 

webinars, and use of general office equipment 

Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69



 
 

Communicable Disease Specialist 
(Immunization Coordinator) 

JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

• Support/inform, and conduct interviews with parents/clients for possible precautions 
and contraindications specific for each vaccine and possible reactions 

• Provide updated training and education for clinic staff regarding vaccination protocols 
and best practices  

Documentation 
• Complete all forms, consents, records, and other documentation as required by Crook 

County and Oregon Health Division in a timely manner 
• Competently document patient information in electronic medical record software 
• Understand terms and concepts involved in determining payer source for vaccine with 

local, state, and federal programs or private insurance 
Vaccine Administration 

• Understand CCHD policies and procedures for administering vaccinations 
• Administer vaccine in a safe manner using universal precautions and sharps safely under 

direction and supervision of Nurse Practitioner  
• Demonstrate safe child comfort restraint and immunization technique per CCHD policy 
• Describe procedures accurately for immunization-related emergencies 

Program Development 
• Create and implement clinic policies and procedures 
• Collaborate and develop community partnerships 
• Promote educational outreach efforts to increase immunization rates in Crook County 
• Participate in data collection for local, state, and federal programs 
• Maintain regional partnerships and coalition participation 
• Pursue grant writing opportunities for program promotion and implementation 
• Coordinate mass immunizing clinic events including logistics, organizing mass 

transportation, security, parking, traffic flow, emergency staff, and accommodations for 
public 

• Attend continuing education regarding changes in vaccine epidemiology 
• Participate in IQIP Immunization project and metrics  

 
Communicable Disease Investigation 

• Investigate reportable disease reports per state guidelines 
• Maintain timeliness of reporting for communicable disease at 100% 
• Utilize the Orpheus database for disease reporting to the state 
• Utilize the OPERA database for COVID-19 
• Work in coordination with the Health Protection and Response Service Group 

Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70



 
 

Communicable Disease Specialist 
(Immunization Coordinator) 

JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

•  Describe and apply current Oregon Health Division policies and procedures for CD services 
•  Properly identify and prioritize populations during CD events or public health emergencies 
• Support Syringe Services Program 
•  Support coordination of Strategic National Stockpile medications or vaccinations with 

local, state and federal agencies 
•  Collaborate with CD Coordinator and Oregon Health Division for reporting data findings 

and after-action reporting 
• Ensure proper specimen handling, processing, testing, charting and disposal 
•  Ensure proper use of lab equipment, calibrating and documenting controls, using testing 

mediums and processes 
 
Medical Assisting  

• Assist in the clinical area performing MA functions as needed during clinics as assigned. 
This may include COVID-19 immunizations 

• Chaperone patient visits as needed 
• Demonstrate proper specimen handling, processing, testing, charting, and disposal of 
• Demonstrate proper use of lab equipment, testing mediums, and processes 
• Demonstrate proper techniques and documentation for all procedures  
• Maintain regular and predictable work attendance 
• Assist with emergency response as needed 
• Coverage may include late evening and weekend hours 

Medication 
• Describe and demonstrate proper dispensing of pharmaceuticals as ordered by Nurse 

Practitioner 
• Describe procedures accurately for clinic-related emergencies 

 
Competencies 

1. Technical Capacity: Equipment use – personal computer and related software, phone, 
printer/copier/facsimile  

2. Knowledge of prenatal care and child development 
3. Ability to exercise independent judgment and plan, organize and administer safe and 

effective public health clinical care; work effectively with individuals and families to 
assist them in the satisfactory solution of health programs; recognize and respect the 
impact of cultural, ethnic, and linguistic difference on health care practices; act as a 
liaison with other agencies to coordinate care of clients; maintain effective working 

Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71



 
 

Communicable Disease Specialist 
(Immunization Coordinator) 

JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

relationships; maintain complete and accurate records and reports; evaluate situations 
accurately and adopt an effective course of action 

4. Ability and skill in working with the public, including excellent customer service and de-
escalation 

5. Teamwork and collaboration: ability to work in a team setting and promote a positive 
work environment that aligns with the department vision, mission, and guiding 
principles 

6. Time Management: Prioritize multiple projects and deadlines in a fast-paced 
environment 

7. Ethical Conduct: Maintain confidentiality, abide by county/state and federal laws with 
knowledge of Public Health and county rules 

8. Knowledge of Oregon Revised Statutes and Oregon Administrative Rules  
9. Knowledge of Public Health law, policies, practices, and procedures 
10. Knowledge of the National Incident Management System (NIMC) and the Incident 

Command System (ICS) 
 
Performance Indicators  

1. Complete quarterly chart reviews for quality assurance 
2. Maintain fiscal stewardship for clinic ordering and stocking process 
3. Complete disease investigations within required timeframes 
4. Timely response to organization-wide initiatives and requirements (i.e. policy 

compliance, workforce surveys, training documentation) 
5. Timely submission of reporting requirements for each assigned program area, including 

Operational Plan outcomes recorded in VMSG database 
6. Timely compliance with State and Federal reporting guidelines 
7. Utilization of Basecamp project management software to support department-wide 

initiatives, including website and social media communications 
 
Supervisory Responsibility  
This position has no supervisory responsibility.  
 
Work Environment 
This role will include a combination of sedentary desk and clinical work; some filing, lifting, and 
carrying may be required. This role routinely uses standard office equipment such as 
computers, phones, photocopiers, filing cabinets, fax machines, and presentation equipment. 

Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72



 
 

Communicable Disease Specialist 
(Immunization Coordinator) 

JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

Clinics, events, and outreach will be off-site at times and may require working in a variety of 
indoor and outdoor settings. 
 
Physical Demands 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to talk or hear. The 
employee is frequently required to sit; stand; walk; lift; use hands to finger, handle, or feel; and 
reach with hands and arms. Ability to lift up to 20 pounds, twist, and bend. 
 
Position Type and Expected Hours of Work 
This is a full-time position. Typical days and hours of work are Monday through Friday, 8:00a.m. 
to 5:00p.m. Some weekends and evenings will be required for travel, events, and/or training. 
Days and hours may vary in a public health emergency.  
 
Travel 
Local and regional travel for presentations, events and training can be expected. State or 
national travel may be an option for training and/or presentation purposes. 
 
Required Education and Experience 

• Medical Assistant (MA) certification  
OR 

• Any equivalent combination of training, education, and experience that provides the 
required skills and knowledge to perform the job.  

 
Preferred Education and Experience 

• Current MA  
• At least one year experience in a clinical setting 
• Bilingual 
• Proficient in Microsoft software 
• Experience with EPIC electronic health record software 

 
Additional Eligibility Requirements 

• Able to complete a thorough employment and/or criminal history check 
Page 73Page 73Page 73Page 73Page 73Page 73Page 73Page 73Page 73Page 73Page 73Page 73



 
 

Communicable Disease Specialist 
(Immunization Coordinator) 

JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

• Able to successfully pass a pre-employment drug test  
• Final candidates will be required to provide official proof of college degree and certified 

transcripts (not required for all positions) 
 
Safety Sensitive Requirements 

• This position is considered to be a safety sensitive position subject to drug screen(s) and 
adherence to all vaccine/immunity requirements for the healthcare setting 

 
AAP/EEO Statement 

• This position is ‘at-will’, and either Crook County or the employee may terminate the 
relationship at any time with or without cause 

• Crook County is an equal opportunity employer 
 
Signatures 
The employee signature below constitutes employee’s understanding of the requirements, 
essential functions and duties of the position. 
 
Employee Print Name: ______________________________ Date: ___________________ 
 
Employee Signature: ________________________________ Date: ___________________ 
 
Supervisor/HR Signature: ____________________________ Date: ___________________ 

Page 74Page 74Page 74Page 74Page 74Page 74Page 74Page 74Page 74Page 74Page 74Page 74



Date: 
 

Meeting date desired:  
 

Subject:  
 

Background and policy implications: 
  

Budget/fiscal impacts: 

Requested by:  

Presenters: 

Legal review (only if requested): 

Elected official sponsor (if applicable): 
I

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 

Page 75Page 75Page 75Page 75Page 75Page 75Page 75Page 75Page 75Page 75Page 75



 
Administrative Assistant (WIC) 

Bilingual 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
Department:  Health Department 
Reports To:  Clinic Supervisor 
Classification: Non-Exempt 
Salary Grade: 113 
 
Summary 
As a member of the Family Health Services group and under the general supervision of the 
Clinic Supervisor, this position provides the following duties in support of the department-wide 
mission to …provide fair opportunity for those in our community to achieve their full health 
potential: 

• front desk reception: answers phones and directs calls, greets clients, makes 
appointments, notifies clients when scheduled 

• clerical support for the Women Infant Children (WIC) program and Crook County Health 
Department, and 

• general front office clerical work. 
This position may be responsible for organizing data and generating standardized reports. 
 
Essential Job Functions 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform 
the essential functions.  
 
Electronic Health Record data entry 

• Locate Electronic Health Record (EHR) charts and review for needed information 
• Update information in computer through EHR and texts 
• Send out reminders/calls for reminders 
• Have paperwork ready for client clinic visits 

 
Clinic Reception 

• Interview and create new client in OCHIN during initial visit 
• Interview client to complete needed paperwork, including insurance and payment 

information 
• Provide client information regarding their visit 
• Have paperwork ready for nurse/clinic staff 
• Immediately schedule Emergency Contraceptive Pill appointments for clients 

 
WIC Reception 

Page 76Page 76Page 76Page 76Page 76Page 76Page 76Page 76Page 76Page 76



 
Administrative Assistant (WIC) 

Bilingual 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
• Complete all required WIC trainings for reception 
• WIC Check-in 
• WIC transfers as needed 
• Additional WIC duties as assigned by supervisor or team lead 
• Explain how to use WIC 
• Run necessary reports for WIC 
• Notify via text, call, mail upcoming appointments 

 
General Reception 

• Answer phones, make appointments, and route calls 
• Greet and check-in clients for clinics 
• Assist clients with paperwork 

 
Spanish Language Access 

• Support translation of written and printed materials for the department 
o Translate state forms, class and educational handouts 
o Assist clients in completing forms 
o Assist with bilingual bulletin boards and other communications 

• Assist with community outreach 
o Assist at immunization clinics providing interpretation services 
o Provide interpretation during education sessions 
o Explain public health services available to the community 
o Complete outreach activities as assigned 

As a certified Medical Interpreter:  
• Assist visiting nurses during home visits 

o Provide interpretation services during home visits 
o Provide education services during the visits 

• Work with nurses and clerks providing interpretation services for Spanish-speaking 
clients 

o Family Planning, WIC, Immunization, HIV counseling and testing, and home visits 
o Track multiple appointments for interpretation in coordination with other 

services  
o Make sure that clients understand instructions provided by providers 

 
General Office Duties 

• Lock medical records room when closing for the day 
• Log on and off all computer systems 

Page 77Page 77Page 77Page 77Page 77Page 77Page 77Page 77Page 77Page 77



 
Administrative Assistant (WIC) 

Bilingual 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
• Process incoming and outgoing mail 
• Mail reminders or call/text clients 
• Maintain fax and copier paper supply 
• Balance cash register, lock money in safe 
• Keep statistics and complete needed reports to the state 
• Order all necessary forms from the state. Make forms in clinic as necessary 
• Assist coordinators with any needed outreach 
• Filing and typing as needed 
• Cross train in all public health programs 
• Referral and information resource for general public 
• Make appointments as needed 

 
Program Support 

• Learn immunization schedule for forecasting 
• Reproductive Health and Immunization Program clerk 
• Forecast immunizations on state computer system (ALERT) 
• WIC education for clients 

 
Additional Duties 

• Training in ICS100, 200, 700, 800, and additional classes as needed 
• Participate in the Public Health Accreditation process, Quality Improvement, and 

Performance Management  
• Staff meeting notes and documentation in shared drive 
• Texting service for appointment reminders and other communication as needed 
• Vital Records Deputy Registrar 

 
Competencies 

1. Customer service 
2. Initiative 
3. Verbal and written communication proficiency 
4. Time management 
5. Ethical conduct 
6. Knowledge of community resources 
7. Ability to maintain confidentiality 
8. Ability to work evenings and weekends as necessary in a public health emergency and 

travel when required 
Page 78Page 78Page 78Page 78Page 78Page 78Page 78Page 78Page 78Page 78



 
Administrative Assistant (WIC) 

Bilingual 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
9. Ability to work in a fast-paced environment 

 
Performance Indicators  

1. Completion of all training and reporting requirements 
2. Timely response to organization-wide initiatives and requirements (i.e. policy 

compliance, workforce surveys, training documentation)  
3. Timely submission of reporting requirements for each assigned program area, including 

Operational Plan outcomes recorded in VMSG database 
4. Utilization of Basecamp project management software to support department-wide 

initiatives including website and social media communications 
 
Supervisory Responsibility  
This position has no supervisory responsibilities. 
 
Work Environment 
This is a primarily clinical role, with some sedentary work; however, some filing, lifting and 
carrying may be required. This role routinely uses standard office equipment such as 
computers, phones, photocopiers, filing cabinets and fax machines. Environment can be fast-
paced, and clinics may be held in a variety of environments indoors, outdoors, on and off site.   
 
Physical Demands 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. While performing the 
duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to talk and hear. The employee is 
frequently required to sit; stand; walk; lift; use hands to finger, handle or feel; and reach with 
hands and arms. Ability to lift up to 20 pounds, twist, and bend.  
 
Position Type and Expected Hours of Work 
This is a full-time position. Typical days and hours of work are Monday through Friday, 8:00am 
to 5:00pm 
 
Travel 
Local and regional travel for presentation, events, and training may be expected. 
 
Required Education and Experience 

Page 79Page 79Page 79Page 79Page 79Page 79Page 79Page 79Page 79Page 79



 
Administrative Assistant (WIC) 

Bilingual 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
• High School Diploma or GED 
• Minimum 2 years’ experience in general office practice including computer data entry 

and customer service 
• Bilingual English/Spanish 
• Ability to become certified as a Health Care Interpreter within 1 year of hire 

OR 
• Any equivalent combination of training, education, and experience that provides the 

required skills and knowledge to perform the job 
 

Preferred Education and Experience 
• Current Certified Health Care Interpreter 
• Applied knowledge of EPIC (Electronic Health Record) computer system 
• Experience in medical reception or billing 
• Experience working with WIC 
• Experience working in public health, health, or social services 
• 3+ years’ experience in general office practice, including computer data entry and 

customer service 
 
Additional Eligibility Requirements 

• Must hold a valid Oregon driver’s license 
• Able to complete a thorough employment and/or criminal history check 
• Able to successfully pass a pre-employment drug test  
• Final candidates will be required to provide official proof of college degree and certified 

transcripts (not required for all positions) 
 
Safety Sensitive Requirements 

• This position is considered to be a safety sensitive position subject to drug screen(s) and 
adherence to all vaccine/immunity requirements for the healthcare setting. 

 
AAP/EEO Statement 

• This position is ‘at-will’, and either Crook County or the employee may terminate the 
relationship at any time with or without cause 

• Crook County is an equal opportunity employer 
 
Signatures 

Page 80Page 80Page 80Page 80Page 80Page 80Page 80Page 80Page 80Page 80



 
Administrative Assistant (WIC) 

Bilingual 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
The employee signature below constitutes employee’s understanding of the requirements, 
essential functions and duties of the position. 
 
Employee Print Name: ______________________________ Date: ___________________ 
 
Employee Signature: ________________________________ Date: ___________________ 
 
Supervisor/HR Signature: ____________________________ Date: ___________________ 
 
 
 

 

Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81



 

  
Date: 
January 10, 2023 

 

Meeting date desired: 
January 18, 2023 

 

Subject: 
Approval of order for road renaming within Phase 14 of Brasada Ranch. Changing 
the road name of SW Goldfield Court to SW Treehouse Court. 

 

Background and policy implications: 
None 

 

Budget/fiscal impacts: 

None 
 

Requested by: 

Provide contact information: Brent Bybee, Planning Manager, 
brent.bybee@co.crook.or.us, 541-447-3211 

 

Presenters: 

Brent Bybee, Planning Manager 
 

Legal review (only if requested): 

None 
 
Elected official sponsor (if applicable): 

None 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 

Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82

mailto:brent.bybee@co.crook.or.us


 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IN THE COUNTY COURT OF THE STATE OF OREGON 
FOR THE COUNTY OF CROOK 

 
IN THE MATTER OF RENAMING A PRIVATE 
ROAD LOCATED IN CROOK COUNTY     
       ORDER NO. 2023-___________ 
 
WHEREAS, the above entitled matter came before the County Court ; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Road Renaming Application was filed in accordance with CCC 12.12.230. 
See Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, in compliance with CCC 12.12.200, Crook County finds that there is a need 
to rename the private road from “SW Goldfield Court” to “SW Treehouse Court” as 
depicted on Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with CCC 12.12.250 public comment and input was sought 
and no objections were received; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Crook County Court orders the road described in Exhibit A to 
be renamed SW Treehouse Court.  
 
DATED this _____ day of ____________________, 2023. 
 
CROOK COUNTY COURT 
 
___________________________________  
Judge Seth Crawford 
 
___________________________________  
Commissioner Jerry Brummer 
 
___________________________________  
Commissioner Brian Barney 
 
Vote:  Aye   Nay   Abstain  Excused 
Seth Crawford  ___   ___   ____    ____ 
Jerry Brummer ___   ___   ____    ____Wybn 
Brian Barney  ___   ___   ____    ____ 

Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83



Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84



Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85



Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86



Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87



Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88



Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89



 

    Agenda Item Request 
 
Date:  
January 10, 2023 
 
Meeting date desired:  
January 18, 2023  Discussion Item 
 
Subject:  
Budget calendar and process. Request approval of the budget calendar. 

 
Background and policy implications: 
We presented and discussed the budget calendar and process with the Court at your January 
10, 2023 work session. Significant changes from the previous years include the mid-year 
meeting with the Budget Committee and expanded goal setting. We will discuss the goal 
setting session with department heads at a department head meeting January 11, 2023.  
 
The framework for goal setting is: a one and one-half day session, with three to four 
separate groups meeting for two-three hours each, with Court members at all sessions, 
followed by a four-hour session the following day with all participants to receive information 
from each of the groups followed by a collaboration to finalize the goals. Key elements from 
the strategic plan prepared and adopted in 2016 will be brought forward as agreed to.  
 
Budget/fiscal impacts: 
None 
 
Requested by:  
Andy Parks, 541.419.9779 aparks@geloregon.com  
 
Presenters: 
Andy Parks 
 
Legal review (only if requested): 
NA 

 
Attachments: 
Budget calendar – draft 
Strategic Plan – 2016-2018 

Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90

mailto:aparks@geloregon.com


Crook County DRAFT
Budget Calendar Prepared date: 11/30/2022

Fiscal Year 2024 Updated: 1/3/2023

Description Parties Dates

Appoint budget committee members, as needed County Judge as needed

Review Fiscal Policies
Budget Officer, Finance Director, Budget 

Analyst
10-Jan

Department mid-year presentations at County Court worksessions -

5-10 minutes each
County Court, Dept Heads, Budget Officer Jan 17, 24, 31

Budget kick-off meeting, approve Budget Calendar County Court, Invited staff, Budget Officer 18-Jan

Distribute 12/31/2022 Financial Report Finance Director 31-Jan

Budget Committee work session - review mid-year financials, fiscal policies, 

forecasts and significant budget issues, establish assumptions

Budget Committee, Budget Officer, Finance 

Director, Budget Analyst
7-Feb

Governing Body Goal Setting - Review  and Update Strategic Plan

County Court, Budget Officer, Finance 

Director, Budget Analyst, invited staff, 

facilitator

Feb 9-10

Approve changes to Fiscal Policies County Court 15-Feb

Management team budget training, preliminary revenue forecasts, review 

goal setting issues and budget priorities and distribute budget preparation 

instructions

Budget Officer, Dept Heads, Budget Analyst 

and senior staff
16-Feb

Distribute next fiscal year compensation detail - baseline Budget Analyst 16-Feb

Desired positions, position changes provided to Budget Officer Dept Heads 23-Feb

Complete 5-year template information request form including Capital 

Improvement Plan (CIP) 
Dept Heads 1-Mar

Update salary schedule and total compensation costs, distribute to 

department heads for review and approval - workforce plan
Finance and Dept Heads 1-Mar

Department requested budgets submitted, including budget narrative, 

benchmarking measure information
Dept Heads 7-Mar

Aggregate budgets Finance 10-Mar

Department meetings to review requested budgets, identify issues and 

alternatives to address

Dept Heads, finance director, budget officer, 

budget analyst

Weeks of Mar 13 

and Mar 20

Complete Internal Service Fund budgets Internal Service dept heads, Budget Officer 15-Mar

Prepare 5-year financial forecasts - all major funds Budget Analyst week of Apr 3

Update year-end revenue and expenditure estimates Dept Heads and budget analyst 15-Apr

Budget Officer review of year-end revenue and expenditure estimates - 

resolve items with management team
Budget Officer, Dept Heads, liaisons week of Apr 17

Aggregate budget document Budget Analyst week of Apr 17

Provide “Notice of Budget Committee Meeting” (ORS 294.426) to Central 

Oregonian Newspaper
Budget Analyst 20-Apr

Publish “Notice of Budget Committee Meeting” (ORS 294.426) in publication 

(5 - 30 days before) and on website (10+ days before) 
Budget Analyst 25-Apr

Distribute draft document to management team for review and edits Budget Analyst 1-May

Management team provides edits and comments to finance Dept Heads 3-May

Resolve any discrepancies Budget Analyst and Dept Heads 5-May

Proposed budget document complete Budget Analyst 9-May

First Budget Committee meeting, read budget message
Budget Committee, Finance Director, 

Budget Analyst, Budget Officer
10-May

Election, if applicable County Clerk 16-May

Additional Budget Committee meetings (ORS 294.428)

Budget Committee approves budget (ORS 294.428)

Budget Committee, Budget Officer, Dept 

Heads, Budget Analyst
5/16, 5/17

Update budget for Budget Committee changes Budget Analyst 19-May

Provide “Hearing Notice and Financial Summary” (ORS 294.438) to newpaper Budget Analyst 25-May

Publish “Hearing Notice and Financial Summary” (ORS 294.438) Budget Analyst 30-May

Public Hearing, adopt budget, make appropriations, levy taxes (ORS 294.456) County Court 7-Jun

Adopted Budget goes into effect County-wide 1-Jul

Adopted Budget, LB-50 submitted to County Assessor and Department of 

Revenue (ORS 294.558)
Budget Analyst 15-Jul

GFOA Budget Award Application Submitted Budget Analyst 30-Sep
Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91



P
ag

e 
92

P
ag

e 
92

P
ag

e 
92

P
ag

e 
92

P
ag

e 
92



P
ag

e 
93

P
ag

e 
93

P
ag

e 
93

P
ag

e 
93

P
ag

e 
93



P
ag

e 
94

P
ag

e 
94

P
ag

e 
94

P
ag

e 
94

P
ag

e 
94



P
ag

e 
95

P
ag

e 
95

P
ag

e 
95

P
ag

e 
95

P
ag

e 
95



P
ag

e 
96

P
ag

e 
96

P
ag

e 
96

P
ag

e 
96

P
ag

e 
96



P
ag

e 
97

P
ag

e 
97

P
ag

e 
97

P
ag

e 
97

P
ag

e 
97



P
ag

e 
98

P
ag

e 
98

P
ag

e 
98

P
ag

e 
98

P
ag

e 
98



P
ag

e 
99

P
ag

e 
99

P
ag

e 
99

P
ag

e 
99

P
ag

e 
99



P
ag

e 
10

0
P

ag
e 

10
0

P
ag

e 
10

0
P

ag
e 

10
0

P
ag

e 
10

0



P
ag

e 
10

1
P

ag
e 

10
1

P
ag

e 
10

1
P

ag
e 

10
1

P
ag

e 
10

1



P
ag

e 
10

2
P

ag
e 

10
2

P
ag

e 
10

2
P

ag
e 

10
2

P
ag

e 
10

2



P
ag

e 
10

3
P

ag
e 

10
3

P
ag

e 
10

3
P

ag
e 

10
3

P
ag

e 
10

3



P
ag

e 
10

4
P

ag
e 

10
4

P
ag

e 
10

4
P

ag
e 

10
4

P
ag

e 
10

4



P
ag

e 
10

5
P

ag
e 

10
5

P
ag

e 
10

5
P

ag
e 

10
5

P
ag

e 
10

5



P
ag

e 
10

6
P

ag
e 

10
6

P
ag

e 
10

6
P

ag
e 

10
6

P
ag

e 
10

6



P
ag

e 
10

7
P

ag
e 

10
7

P
ag

e 
10

7
P

ag
e 

10
7

P
ag

e 
10

7



P
ag

e 
10

8
P

ag
e 

10
8

P
ag

e 
10

8
P

ag
e 

10
8

P
ag

e 
10

8



P
ag

e 
10

9
P

ag
e 

10
9

P
ag

e 
10

9
P

ag
e 

10
9

P
ag

e 
10

9



P
ag

e 
11

0
P

ag
e 

11
0

P
ag

e 
11

0
P

ag
e 

11
0

P
ag

e 
11

0



P
ag

e 
11

1
P

ag
e 

11
1

P
ag

e 
11

1
P

ag
e 

11
1

P
ag

e 
11

1



P
ag

e 
11

2
P

ag
e 

11
2

P
ag

e 
11

2
P

ag
e 

11
2

P
ag

e 
11

2



P
ag

e 
11

3
P

ag
e 

11
3

P
ag

e 
11

3
P

ag
e 

11
3

P
ag

e 
11

3



P
ag

e 
11

4
P

ag
e 

11
4

P
ag

e 
11

4
P

ag
e 

11
4

P
ag

e 
11

4



P
ag

e 
11

5
P

ag
e 

11
5

P
ag

e 
11

5
P

ag
e 

11
5

P
ag

e 
11

5



P
ag

e 
11

6
P

ag
e 

11
6

P
ag

e 
11

6
P

ag
e 

11
6

P
ag

e 
11

6



P
ag

e 
11

7
P

ag
e 

11
7

P
ag

e 
11

7
P

ag
e 

11
7

P
ag

e 
11

7



P
ag

e 
11

8
P

ag
e 

11
8

P
ag

e 
11

8
P

ag
e 

11
8

P
ag

e 
11

8



Date: 
January 11, 2023 

Meeting date desired: 
January 18, 2023 

Subject:  
Presentation by Government Portfolio Advisors (the County’s investment advisors) regarding 
the County’s investments 

Background and policy implications: 
Government Portfolio Advisors will walk through our current investment portfolio and 
strategy as well as the current market conditions 

Budget/fiscal impacts: 
N/A 

Agenda Item Request

Requested by:  
Galan Carter, Treasurer galan.carter@co.crook.or.us 
Christina Haron, CPA 541-416-3808  christina.haron@co.crook.or.us

Presenters: 
Government Portfolio Advisors 
Galan Carter 

Legal review (only if requested): 
N/A 

Elected official sponsor (if applicable): 
N/A 

Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119



December 31, 2022 Total Aggregate Portfolio

Quarterly Investment Report 
Crook County

Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120



2

December 31, 2022

Interest Rates – Inverted Curve

The interest rate curve enter 2023 deeply inverted with the front-end responding to rate hikes while 
the long end ended lower on the view that inflation is set to cool in the year ahead leading to a less 
hawkish central bank. Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121



3

December 31, 2022

Two-Year Treasury Note vs. Ten-Year Treasury 
Note – Trailing Ten Years

0.00
0.25
0.50
0.75
1.00
1.25
1.50
1.75
2.00
2.25
2.50
2.75
3.00
3.25
3.50
3.75
4.00
4.25
4.50
4.75
5.00

Yield Comparison
Two-Year Treasury Note vs. Ten-Year Treasury Note 

Trailing Ten Years as of December 31, 2022
2 Year Note

10 Year Note

Source: Bloomberg

Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122



December 31, 2022 Total Aggregate Portfolio

Crook County Portfolio Review
Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123



Crook County | Total Aggregate Portfolio December 31, 2022

Compliance Summary Report

5

Policy Constraint Type Current Status

Diversification Constraints Compliant

Maturity Constraints Compliant

Credit Constraints Compliant

GPA Investment Report

• The total portfolio maintained compliance with the County 
investment policy and state statute

Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124



Crook County | Total Aggregate Portfolio December 31, 2022

Metric Value

Cash and Cash Equivalents 60,735,235.52

Investments 61,534,690.10

Book Yield 2.99%

Market Yield 4.58%

Effective Duration 0.67

Years to Maturity 0.65

Avg Credit Rating AAA

Total Portfolio Characteristics
(Liquidity, Core, and Bond Proceeds)

Summary Overview

GPA Investment Report 6

Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125



Crook County | Total Aggregate Portfolio December 31, 2022

Allocation by Asset Class

Summary Overview

GPA Investment Report 7

Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126



Crook County | Total Aggregate Portfolio December 31, 2022

Summary Overview

GPA Investment Report 8

Account Par Amount Book Value Original Cost Market Value Net
Unrealized
Gain (Loss)

Accrued Yield
at Cost

Effective
Duration

Benchmark
Duration

Benchmark

CROOK-Investment
Core

27,025,000.00 26,132,638.38 26,003,837.57 25,920,052.26 (212,586.12) 127,055.09 3.85% 1.89 2.04 ICE BofA 0-5 Year
US

Treasury Index

CROOK-Liquidity* 58,873,989.26 58,873,989.26 58,873,989.26 58,873,989.26 0.00 0.00 2.70% 0.01 ICE BofAML US 1-
Month

Treasury Bill
Index

CROOK-Bond 2022
Investments

35,735,000.00 35,653,037.26 35,605,901.37 35,234,952.30 (418,084.96) 252,630.45 2.98% 0.71 ICE BofAML U.S.
Treasury Notes &
Bonds 0-1 Year

CROOK-Bond 2022
Liquidity*

1,861,246.26 1,861,246.26 1,861,246.26 1,861,246.26 0.00 0.00 0.65% 0.01 ICE BofAML US 1-
Month Treasury Bill
Index

Total 123,495,235.52 122,520,911.16 122,344,974.46 121,890,240.08 (630,671.09) 379,685.54 2.99% 0.67

Strategic Structure

*Liquidity Data as of 11/30/22

Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127



Crook County | Total Aggregate Portfolio December 31, 2022

Risk Management-Credit/Issuer

Credit Rating S&P/Moody’s/Fitch

Market Value + Accrued %

S&P
A 943,536.57 0.77
A- 982,272.17 0.80
AA 933,256.00 0.76
AA+ 57,293,164.28 46.86
AA- 949,902.75 0.78
AAA 432,558.33 0.35
NA 60,735,235.52 49.67
Moody's
A1 1,934,684.76 1.58
A2 492,314.19 0.40
Aa1 432,558.33 0.35
Aa2 1,381,968.53 1.13
Aaa 57,293,164.28 46.86
NA 60,735,235.52 49.67
Fitch
AA 936,254.90 0.77
AA- 2,426,998.96 1.98
AAA 56,823,884.63 46.47
NA 62,082,787.13 50.78
Total 122,269,925.62 100.00

Issuer Concentration

GPA Investment Report 9

Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128



December 31, 2022 Total Aggregate Portfolio

Crook County Portfolio Strategy
Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129



11

December 31, 2022

Corporate, 15.00%

Municipal, 
10.00%

Agency, 
60.00%

Treasury, 15.00%

Strategic Asset Allocation Targets

The current asset allocation may move within the tactical

bands relative to the strategic target allocations given the

County’s risk tolerance and current market conditions

Market 
Sector Strategic Target Tactical Bands

Agency 60% 5%-75%
Treasury 15% 10%-80%
Corporate 15% 0%-15%
Municipal 10% 0%-10%

Investment Core Allocation vs Target

Corporate, 13.06%

Municipal, 
5.06%

Agency, 
48.08%

Treasury, 33.80%

Current Portfolio Allocation

Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130



12

December 31, 2022

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

0-1 yr 1-2 yr 2-3 yr 3-4 yr 4-5 yr

Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
%

Duration Band

Target Duration Allocation
Core Portfolio

Benchmark Index Current Portfolio
Duration Min Max

Benchmark 
Index 2.04 1.58 2.63

Current 
Portfolio 1.88 - -

RIS K AND RETURN OVERVIEW

• The Core Portfolio is managed to the 0-5 year all Treasury benchmark
• Bond Proceeds investments are matched to projected cash flows explicitly

Page 131Page 131Page 131Page 131



13

December 31, 2022

Current Par Recommendation Recommended Ranges

Core $27,025,000 $45,000,000 $35,000,000 to $60,000,000

Liquidity $58,873,989 $25,000,000 $20,000,000 to $50,000,000

GPA recommends the above listed core and liquidity amounts, based off of historical balance reviews and this GPS discussion. These are strategy-based recommendations, not

related to investment policy requirements and can be adjusted as needed. Additional discussions may be required to make the appropriate changes in the future.

• Core recommendation to be achieved gradually

• For FY 2023, $26.8 million is specifically budgeted in Reserves

• Investment Core Maturities Under 1 Year will also provide an additional tier of liquidity.

• Plan to add $10 million to Core by end of Jan 2023

Core and Liquidity Recommendations

Page 132Page 132Page 132Page 132



14

December 31, 2022
Two-Year Note vs OSTF Since 2016

0.00
0.25
0.50
0.75
1.00
1.25
1.50
1.75
2.00
2.25
2.50
2.75
3.00
3.25
3.50
3.75
4.00
4.25
4.50
4.75
5.00

Yield Comparison
Two-Year Treasury Note vs. OSTF

Trailing Six Years as of November 30, 2022

2 Year Note OSTF

Page 133Page 133Page 133Page 133



15

December 31, 2022

Long Term Performance Is Driven By 
Diversification and Risk Management

• While markets are evolving rapidly and yield is never guarantee, the current yield 
environment offers short term investment opportunities close to 4.5%

• GPA recommends blended Core and Liquidity approach (65% Core and 35% liquidity)

• The blended approach in the current market could increase book yield in operating portfolio 
from 3.05% to around 3.84%

• The blended approach allows the County to leverage both the LGIP and slightly longer term
securities for a more diversified portfolio

• The result could be an increase of $552,000 in projected estimated earnings for an $70 
million portfolio

Page 134Page 134Page 134Page 134



This report is for general informational purposes only and is not intended to provide specific advice or recommendations. Government Portfolio Advisors (GPA) is an investment advisor registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is required to maintain a written disclosure statement of our background and business experience.

Questions About an Account: GPA’s monthly & quarterly reports are intended to detail the investment advisory activity managed by GPA. The custodial bank maintains the control of assets and settles all investment transactions.
The custodial statement is the official record of security and cash holdings and transactions. GPA recognizes that clients may use these reports to facilitate record keeping and that the custodial bank statement and the GPA report
should be reconciled, and differences documented.

Trade Date versus Settlement Date: Many custodial banks use settlement date basis and post coupons or maturities on the following business days when they occur on weekend. These items may result in the need to reconcile
due to a timing difference. GPA reports are on a trade date basis in accordance with GIPS performance standards. GPA can provide all account settings to support the reason for any variance.

Bank Deposits and Pooled Investment Funds Held in Liquidity Accounts Away from the Custodial Bank are Referred to as Line Item Securities: GPA relies on the information provided by clients when reporting pool
balances, bank balances and other assets that are not held at the client’s custodial bank. GPA does not guarantee the accuracy of information received from third parties. Balances cannot be adjusted once submitted however
corrective transactions can be entered as adjustments in the following months activity. Assets held outside the custodial bank that are reported to GPA are included in GPA’s oversight compliance reporting and strategic plan.

Account Control: GPA does not have the authority to withdraw or deposit funds from or to any client’s custodial account. Clients retain responsibility for the deposit and withdrawal of funds to the custodial account. Our clients retain
responsibility for their internal accounting policies, implementing and enforcing internal controls and generating ledger entries or otherwise recording transactions.

Custodial Bank Interface: Our contract provides for the ability for GPA to interface into our client’s custodial bank to reconcile transactions, maturities and coupon payments. The GPA client portal will be available to all clients to
access this information directly at any time.

Market Price: Generally, GPA has set all securities market pricing to match custodial bank pricing. There may be certain securities that will require pricing override due to inaccurate custodial bank pricing that will otherwise distort
portfolio performance returns. GPA may utilize Refinitiv pricing source for commercial paper, discount notes and supranational bonds when custodial bank pricing does not reflect current market levels. The pricing variances are
obvious when market yields are distorted from the current market levels.

Amortized Cost: The original cost on the principal of the security is adjusted for the amount of the periodic reduction of any discount or premium from the purchase date until the date of the report. Discounts or premiums are
amortized on a straight-line basis on all securities. This can be changed at the client’s request.

Callable Securities: Securities subject to redemption in whole or in part prior to the stated final maturity at the discretion of the security’s issuer are referred to as “callable”. Certain call dates may not show up on the report if the call
date has passed or if the security is continuously callable until maturity date. Bonds purchased at a premium will be amortized to the next call date while all other callable securities will be amortized to maturity. If the bond is amortized
to the call date, amortization will be reflected to that date and once the call date passes, the bond will be fully amortized.

Duration: The duration is the effective duration. Duration on callable securities is based on the probability of the security being called given market rates and security characteristics.

Benchmark Duration: The benchmark duration is based on the duration of the stated benchmark that is assigned to each account.

Rating: Information provided for ratings is based upon a good faith inquiry of selected sources, but its accuracy and completeness cannot be guaranteed.

Coupon Payments and Maturities on Weekends: On occasion, coupon payments and maturities occur on a weekend or holiday. GPA’s report settings are on the accrual basis so the coupon postings and maturities will be
accounted for in the period earned. The bank may be set at a cash basis, which may result in a reconciliation variance.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: GPA has defined cash and cash equivalents to be cash, bank deposits, LGIP pools and repurchase agreements. This may vary from your custodial bank which typically defines cash and equivalents as
all securities that mature under 90 days. Check with your custodial bank to understand their methodology.

Account Settings: GPA has the portfolio settings at the lot level, if a security is sold our setting will remove the lowest cost security first. First-in-first-out (FIFO) settings are available at the client’s request.

Historical Numbers: Data was transferred from GPA’s legacy system, however, variances may exist from the data received due to a change of settings on Clearwater. GPA is utilizing this information for historical return data with the
understanding the accrual settings and pricing sources may differ slightly.

Financial Situation: In order to better serve you, GPA should be promptly notified of any material change in your investment objective or financial situation.

No Guarantee: The securities in the portfolio are not guaranteed or otherwise protected by GPA, the FDIC (except for non-negotiable certificates of deposit) or any government agency. Investment in securities involves risks, including
the possible loss of the amount invested.

Page 135Page 135Page 135Page 135



 
 

 
 

    
Date:  
January 10, 2023 
 
Meeting date desired:  
January 18, 2023 
 
Subject:  
Ordinance 335, ratifying the creation of an intergovernmental agency, and an agreement 
with the City of Prineville, to create the “Crook County Road Agency” pursuant to ORS 
Chapter 190. 

 
Background and policy implications: 
Under the authority of by HB 2174, the County can divert a percentage of its Secure Rural 
Schools funds to certain types of public entities.  The legislation’s goal is to allow for the 
increase in total funds allocated to Oregon by avoiding the existing dilution rules applied to 
other federal funds apportioned to counties. 

 
Budget/fiscal impacts: 
The sponsor of HB 2174 hoped that the law would allow for an additional $22 million in SRS 
funds to be awarded to Oregon public agencies.  Although it is only a rough estimate, prior 
correspondence provided to Crook County indicated that it might see an increase of several 
hundred thousand dollars, though perhaps not in the first year. 

 
The new intergovernmental entity would need to adopt its own budget and endure the usual 
and customary expenses of public notices, public meetings, and staff time.  The agency 
would also need to purchase an insurance policy.  Estimates for that insurance policy are less 
than $2,000.00 for the first year. 
 
Requested by:  
Eric Blaine, County Counsel 
Eric.Blaine@CrookCountyOR.gov 
541-416-3919 
 
Presenters: 
Eric Blaine, County Counsel 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 

Page 136Page 136Page 136



 
 

 
Legal review (only if requested): 
The ordinance and agreement have been drafted by the legal department; the City of 
Prineville’s attorney has approved the agreement as to form. 
 
Elected official sponsor (if applicable):  
N/A 

Page 137Page 137Page 137



Crook County Counsel’s Office 
Mailing: 300 NE Third St., Prineville, OR  97754   Phone:  541-416-3919 
Physical: 301 NE 3rd St., Ste 200, Prineville, OR 97754  Fax:      541-313-5964 

 

 

MEMO   
 

TO:  Crook County Court 
  
FROM: Eric Blaine, County Counsel 
 
DATE: December 19, 2022 
 
RE: Intergovernmental agreement to create a public entity to receive SRS funds 

and Ordinance 335, ratifying that creation 
Our   Our File No: Districts # 20 

____________________________________________________________________ 
 

The Secure Rural Schools program is a federal endeavor to help alleviate the consequences of 
federal ownership of vast tracts of land experienced by western states.  Such land is exempt from 
local property taxes and, under a decades-old policy, is unlikely to be sold to private owners who 
would pay taxes in the future.  The Secure Rural Schools program must be periodically renewed by 
act of Congress.  Under this program, funds are provided to local governments like the County to 
advance certain Congressionally-approved activities. 
 
For reasons both arcane and, perhaps, unintended, the amount of funds which would be 
apportioned to Oregon counties is reduced if those counties receive other types of federal funding.  
In an effort to help counteract this longstanding issue, the Oregon Legislature enacted House Bill 
2174.  This authorizes local public entities to create one of three different types of public entities to 
receive SRS funds – and, since those funds go to a new public entity, they would not be subject to 
the deductions that Oregon counties endure by receiving other types of federal funding.  The three 
types of entity are (1) an intergovernmental entity created pursuant to ORS 190.003 to 190.130; (2) 
a county road district formed under ORS 371.055 to 371.110; or (3) a service district for roads 
formed under ORS Chapter 451. 
 
The attached intergovernmental agreement, in conjunction with the attached Ordinance, would 
create a new intergovernmental entity in furtherance of HB 2174's goal.  To form an 
intergovernmental entity, two existing public bodies must adopt ordinances “ratifying” the creation, 
and listing out the entity’s duties, purposes, effective date, and the intent to create such an entity.  
The two existing public bodies would also establish a contract defining the purposes and 
responsibilities of the new entity.  In this case, the City of Prineville was willing to assist the County 
in forming what has been titled the “Crook County Road Agency.”   
 
Under the agreement’s terms, the members of the County Court would serve as members of the 
Agency’s governing board, and must meet at least quarterly to discuss Agency business.  The Agency 
would adopt and operate its own budget, separate from that of the County.  The Agency would need 
to obtain its own insurance policy, with limits of at least $1 million per occurrence / $2 million 
aggregate, plus its own workers compensation insurance if there are any employees of the Agency.  
The insurance policy will name both the City and County as additional insureds.   
 
After the intergovernmental agreement is formed, the Oregon Secretary of State’s office must be 
informed of the existence of the new entity by providing them with copies of the formation ratifying 
ordinances.  In order to receive SRS funds, the new entity would then inform the State Department Page 138Page 138Page 138



January 10, 2023 
Page 2 

  

 

 

of Administrative Services of its existence, and that the funds should be directed to it instead of the 
County. 
 
The City’s attorney has reviewed the intergovernmental agreement and approved it as to form.  It 
was modeled off of an IGA used by Jefferson County.   
 
Finally, if these two documents are approved, then the new entity will want to execute an agreement 
with the County to the performance of road maintenance activities.  Finalizing such an agreement 
would not need to be completed immediately, but should be completed in time for the summer road 
work season. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
 
 

 
Please place this memo and the attached document(s) on 
the Wednesday, January 18, 2023 County Court Agenda 
as a Public Hearing (for the Ordinance), and Discussion 
Item (for the Agreement), for approval and signatures. 
 
 
 

 

Page 139Page 139Page 139



 

 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN THE COUNTY COURT OF THE STATE OF OREGON 

FOR THE COUNTY OF CROOK 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING THE  ) 

CREATION OF AN O.R.S. CHAPTER  )  

190 INTERGOVERNMENTAL ENTITY ) ORDINANCE NO. 335 

ENTITY ENTITLED THE “CROOK ) 

COUNTY ROAD AGENCY” AND  ) 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY  ) 

 

WHEREAS, Crook County is eligible to receive Secure Rural School (SRS) Act 

funds from the Federal Government as the Act may from time to time be reauthorized by 

Congress.  Such reauthorizations establish the programs and purposes to which SRS 

funds may be employed by the receiving public entities; and 

WHEREAS, the portion of SRS funds the County receives is subject to 

diminution on account of other federal programs and funds which the County also 

receives.  These other funds may be unrelated to the SRS program; and 

WHEREAS, Oregon Legislature House Bill 2174 (2021), amending ORS 

294.060, created flexibility for county governments to increase federal Payment in Lieu 

of Taxes (PILT) dollars that flow into rural communities by allowing a county 

government to elect to divert the 75% of their SRS forest reserve payment (ORS 

293.560) that is statutorily reserved for the county road fund to a separate public body; 

and 

Page 140Page 140Page 140



 

 2 

WHEREAS, if a separate public body receives the payment instead of the County, 

the amount is not deducted from the next year’s PILT payment as a prior payment. The 

movement of funds allowed under ORS 294.060 could potentially bring an estimated 

additional $10 million federal dollars into Oregon’s counties; and 

WHEREAS, Crook County and the City of Prineville are units of local 

government as defined by ORS 190.003, and have authority pursuant to ORS 190.010 to 

form an intergovernmental entity by written agreement for the performance of any or all 

functions and activities that a party to the agreement, its officers or agencies, have 

authority to perform.  This can include receiving and spending SRS funds; and 

WHEREAS, Crook County and the City of Prineville have executed a written 

agreement (hereinafter the “Intergovernmental Agreement”) to create the Crook County 

Road Agency, an ORS Chapter 190 intergovernmental entity, which is eligible to receive 

SRS under the provisions of HB 2174 (2021); and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with ORS 190.085, this Ordinance ratifies the 

execution of the Intergovernmental Agreement and the creation of the Crook County 

Road Agency. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Crook County Court ordains as follows: 

Section One: The above Recitals are adopted as the County Court’s Findings of 

Fact. 

Section Two:  Pursuant to ORS 190.085, this Ordinance declares that it is the 

intent of Crook County to create an intergovernmental entity by intergovernmental 

agreement with the City of Prineville. 

Page 141Page 141Page 141



 

 3 

Section Three:  The intergovernmental agreement will have an Effective Date of 

February 1, 2023, as described in the agreement. 

Section Four:  The public purposes for which the Crook County Road Agency is 

created are:  to receive and distribute U.S. Forest Service Secure Rural Schools (“SRS”) 

funds for road construction in Crook County, Oregon, and all other necessary or 

appropriate functions related thereto. 

Section Five:  The powers, duties, and functions of the Crook County Road 

Agency are:   

 

• The Agency will have responsibility and authority to receive and distribute Crook 
County’s apportionment of Secure Rural Schools road funds for road 
construction, including functions related thereto, within the boundaries of Crook 
County, and subject to the terms of the formation Intergovernmental Agreement 
and/or ORS chapter 190, perform such other functions as may be assigned by 
Crook County and the City of Prineville from time to time.    
 

• The Agency shall have the power to adopt, through action of its Board of 
Directors (the “Board”), such bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies necessary to 
further the purposes of the Agency and/or the Intergovernmental Agreement.  
 

• The Agency shall have the power to enter into agreements with other public or 
private entities and to exercise all powers pursuant to the Laws (as defined 
below), including, without limitation, the principal acts of the County and City 
and ORS chapter 190.  The term “Law(s)” means all federal, state, and local laws, 
statutes, ordinances, and/or regulations directly or indirectly affecting the 
Agency, the formation Intergovernmental Agreement, and/or Agency’s 
purposes, including, without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990 (and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder) and ORS chapter 
190, all as now in force and/or which may hereafter be amended, modified, 
enacted, or promulgated. 

 

Section Six:  Staff are directed to provide a copy of this Ordinance to the Oregon 

Secretary of State’s office within thirty days of its effective date in compliance with ORS 

190.085. 

Page 142Page 142Page 142



 

 4 

Section Seven:  Emergency: This Ordinance being necessary for the health, 

welfare and safety of the people of Crook County, an emergency is hereby declared to 

exist, and this Ordinance shall become effective on the date of signing. 

 

 

DATED this _____ day of ____________________, 2023. 

 

 

CROOK COUNTY COURT 

 

___________________________________  

Judge Seth Crawford 

 

___________________________________  

Commissioner Jerry Brummer 

 

___________________________________  

Commissioner Brian Barney 

 

 

 

Vote:  Aye   Nay   Abstain  Excused 

Seth Crawford  ___   ___   ____    ____ 

Jerry Brummer ___   ___   ____    ____ 

Brian Barney  ___   ___   ____    ____ 

 

Page 143Page 143Page 143



 

 Page 1 of 7 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
CREATING CROOK COUNTY ROAD AGENCY 

  
 This Intergovernmental Agreement creating Crook County Road Agency (this 
“Agreement”) effective February 1, 2023 (the “Effective Date”), and is entered into between 
Crook County (“County”), a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, whose address is 300 NE 
3rd St. Prineville, OR 97754, and City of Prineville (“City”), an Oregon municipal corporation, 
whose address is 387 NE 3rd St. Prineville, OR 97754.  Each of the parties hereto is referred to 
herein individually as a “Party” and collectively “Parties.”  
 

RECITALS: 
 

A. The Parties desire to form an intergovernmental entity to be named the Crook 
County Road Agency (the “Agency”).  Agency will be formed to receive and distribute certain road 
funds. 
 

B. This Agreement is made pursuant to ORS 190.010, which statute provides that 
units of local government may enter into agreements for performance of any functions and 
activities that any party to the agreement, or its officers or agents, has the authority to perform.   
 

C. The Parties are authorized to enter into this Agreement creating an 
intergovernmental entity pursuant to their respective principal acts and ORS 190.003 to 190.265. 
 

AGREEMENT: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Parties’ respective obligations under this 
Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
Section 1.   Agency. 
 

1.1 Creation.  Pursuant to this Agreement, the Agency is hereby created as an 
intergovernmental entity pursuant to ORS Chapter 190. 
 
1.2 Purpose.  Agency’s purposes include receiving and distributing U.S. Forest Service Secure 
Rural Schools (“SRS”) funds for road construction in Crook County, Oregon, and all other 
necessary or appropriate functions related thereto. 

 
1.3 Responsibilities and General Powers.    

 
1.3.1 Agency will have responsibility and authority to receive and distribute County’s 
apportionment of SRS road funds for road construction, including functions related 
thereto, within the boundaries of County, and subject to the terms of this Agreement 

Page 144Page 144Page 144



 

 Page 2 of 7 
 

and/or ORS chapter 190, perform such other functions as may be assigned by the Parties 
from time to time.    
 
1.3.2 Agency shall have the power to adopt, through action of its Board of Directors (the 
“Board”), such bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies necessary to further the purposes 
of Agency and/or this Agreement.  
 
1.3.3  Agency shall have the power to enter into agreements with other public or private 
entities and to exercise all powers pursuant to the Laws (as defined below), including, 
without limitation, the principal acts of the Parties and ORS chapter 190.  For purposes of 
this Agreement, the term “Law(s)” means all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, 
ordinances, and/or regulations directly or indirectly affecting Agency, this Agreement, 
and/or Agency’s purposes, including, without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990 (and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder) and ORS chapter 190, 
all as now in force and/or which may hereafter be amended, modified, enacted, or 
promulgated. 

 
1.4  Offices.  The offices of Agency shall be located at the Crook County Administration 
Building, 203 NE Court St. Prineville, OR 97754.  
 
1.5  Governing Body.  The Board, unless otherwise provided herein, shall be the governing 
body and shall exercise authority over all matters of Agency concern.  The Board will serve as 
the Local Contracts Review Board for the Agency. 
 

Section 2.   Board of Directors. 
 

2.1  Membership.  Agency shall be governed by the Board consisting of the judge and 
commissioners serving on the Crook County Court.  
 
2.2  Authority.  
 

2.2.1  The Board shall have authority to do the following: 
a.  Adopt bylaws for Agency, which shall set forth the rules by which the Agency shall be 

run.  The bylaws may be amended from time to time by the Board.   
b.  Oversee and to have full responsibility for all matters pertaining to the development 

and operations of Agency.   
c.  Enter into contracts for goods and services for Agency’s development and operations. 
d.  Review and approve the Agency’s budget pursuant to Oregon Local Budget Law, when 

applicable. 
e.  Appoint advisory boards to consider any issue before it, if it so desires. 
f.  Establish the Agency mission and goals. 
g. Recommend and monitor expenditures consistent with the manner and restrictions of 

ORS 368.705-368.722.   
 

Page 145Page 145Page 145



 

 Page 3 of 7 
 

2.2.2  The Board shall not have authority to do the following: 
a.  Commit the taxing authority or general funds of any Party. 
b.  Expend funds in excess of the SRS funding received by the Agency.    
 

2.3  Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on at least a quarterly basis at 
such time and place as determined by the Board.  Special meetings may be called by the 
chairperson as needed or desired.  All motions presented for approval shall require an 
affirmative vote of a majority of the whole membership of the voting members of the Board.  
Half plus one of the members of Board shall constitute a quorum.  Members appearing by 
telephone or other electronic means are considered present.   
 
The rules of parliamentary practice comprised in the Robert's Rules of Order (11th Edition) 
shall be used as a guide to address procedural questions to the extent not inconsistent with 
Agency’s policy and procedures. 

 
Section 3.   Budget; Funding; Costs; Revenue. 
 

3.1  Budget.  Agency, through County, shall prepare the annual operating budget of the 
Agency.  The Board shall adopt a final budget, in accordance with ORS 294.900 to 294.930, 
no later than May of each preceding year.  The budget period shall be on a fiscal year basis 
beginning on the first of July each year.  The Board shall consider and adopt the budget on 
behalf of the Agency. If there are any program changes any supplemental budget shall go 
through the budget stages set forth herein and comply with all applicable budget policies and 
Oregon Local Budget Law. 

 
3.2 Funding.  The Agency will receive funds under ORS 293.560 apportioned to the County 
road fund.  County will request that the Oregon Department of Administrative Services credit 
the moneys described in ORS 294.060(1) to the Agency pursuant to ORS 294.060(8).   
 
3.3 Expenses.  County will be responsible for providing all funds necessary to pay for Agency’s 
costs, expenses, obligations, and/or liabilities. Notwithstanding anything contained in this 
Agreement to the contrary, City will not be responsible for (and will not pay) any funds for 
Agency’s costs, expenses, obligations, and/or liabilities. 
 
3.4 Revenue.  Revenue or fees derived from the functions or activities of the Agency will be 
apportioned to County. 
 

Section 4. Term, Termination and Amendment. 
 

4.1  Term.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and will remain in full force 
and effect until terminated by either Party.”   
 
4.2  Termination.  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, (a) 
the Parties may terminate this Agreement and dissolve the Agency by the Parties’ unanimous 

Page 146Page 146Page 146



 

 Page 4 of 7 
 

written agreement, (b) either Party may terminate this Agreement by providing the other 
Party no less than one hundred eighty (180) days’ prior written notice (provided, however, 
termination under this Section 4.2(b) will not take effect between February 1 and June 30 of 
any fiscal year), and (c) either Party may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written 
notice to the other Party if the other Party breaches and/or otherwise fails to perform the 
other Party’s obligations under this Agreement. 

 
Section 5.   Additional Parties.  Subject to the Laws, including, without limitation, ORS chapter 
190, additional governmental entities may be allowed to join the Agency subject to approval by 
the governing bodies of all Parties.   
 
Section 6. Insurance; Liability; Indemnification; Relationship.   
 

6.1  Insurance.  Agency will obtain and maintain adequate insurance to cover Agency’s 
operations. Without otherwise limiting the generality of the immediately preceding sentence, 
Agency will obtain and maintain, in addition to all other insurance required under this 
Agreement, the following minimum levels of insurance: (a) general liability insurance for all 
losses or claims arising out of or related to Agency’s operations (including, without limitation, 
damages as a result of death or injury to any person or destruction or damage to any 
property) with limits of no less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence, $2,000,000.00 in the 
aggregate; (b) employer liability insurance with limits of no less than $500,000.00 per 
occurrence and in the aggregate; and (c) workers’ compensation insurance in form and 
amount sufficient to satisfy the requirements of applicable Oregon law (the workers’ 
compensation insurance policy will contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of each Party).  
Each liability insurance policy required under this Agreement will be in form and content 
satisfactory to the Parties, will list each Party (and each Party’s Representatives (as defined 
below)) as additional insured(s), and will contain a severability of interest clause.  
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the Parties may increase the 
minimum levels of insurance Agency is required to carry under this Agreement so that 
Agency’s insurance at least equals the applicable limits of liability identified under the Oregon 
Tort Claims Act (ORS 30.260 – ORS 30.300).  For purposes of this Agreement, the term 
“Representative(s)” means the identified Party’s officers, employees, contractors, agents, 
and volunteers. 
 
6.2  Liability.  Except as otherwise provided under Section 6.3, there shall be no joint and 
several liability of the Parties either in contract or tort, and all obligations of Agency or the 
Parties shall be several only.  Without limiting the foregoing, no Party to this Agreement shall 
be liable for damages, debts or claims caused solely by the negligent act, omission or other 
wrongful act by Agency or other Parties hereto.  The Party causing damages by its sole 
negligent act, omission, or wrongful act shall be individually liable.   
 
6.3  Agency and County Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted under applicable 
law, Agency and County each jointly and severally release and will defend, indemnify, and 
hold City and City’s Representatives harmless for, from, and against all claims, actions, 

Page 147Page 147Page 147



 

 Page 5 of 7 
 

proceedings, damages, liabilities, injuries, losses, and expenses of every kind, whether known 
or unknown, including, without limitation, attorney fees and costs, resulting from or arising 
out of Agency’s formation and operations and/or County’s breach and/or failure to perform 
County’s representations, warranties, covenants, and/or obligations under this Agreement. 

 
6.4 Relationship.  Each Party is an independent contractor of the other Parties.  This 
Agreement does not create a joint venture and/or agency relationship between the Parties.  
No Party has the authority to bind the other Party or represent to any person that a Party is 
an agent of the other Party.  No Party will provide any benefits to any other Party; each Party 
will be solely responsible for obtaining the Party’s own benefits, including, without limitation, 
insurance, medical reimbursement, and retirement plans. Notwithstanding anything 
contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Agency (and/or the Board) will not have the 
authority to bind and/or encumber a Party in any manner except as agreed in writing by the 
Party.   

 
Section 7.  Withdrawal.  Any Party may elect to terminate its participation in this Agreement (and 
the Agency) (i.e., withdrawal) by providing no less than one hundred twenty (120) days’ prior 
written notice to the Board chairperson and the governing body of the other Party.  Withdrawal 
will be effective at 11:59 PM of the April 30 that is no less than one hundred twenty (120) days 
after the date of such notice. 
 
Section 8.  Dissolution.  Upon dissolution of Agency, County shall remain solely liable for any 
Agency obligation that has been specifically incurred in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement, or by other resolutions, or by separate agreement of the parties.  Upon dissolution, 
the assets of Agency will be distributed to Crook County.   
 
Section 9.   General Provisions.  
 

9.1  Coordination; Assignment; Binding Effect.  The Parties will maintain adequate levels of 
communication to ensure maximum cooperation and coordination between the Parties.  No 
Party may assign any of the Party’s rights and/or obligations under this Agreement to any 
person without the prior written consent of all other Parties.  Subject to the immediately 
preceding sentence, this Agreement will be binding on the Parties and their respective 
administrators, successors, and permitted assigns and will inure to their benefit.  The Parties 
will execute all documents or instruments and will perform all lawful acts necessary or 
appropriate to carry out the intent of this Agreement.  All exhibits, schedules, instruments, 
and other documents referenced in this Agreement are part of this Agreement. 
 
9.2  Notices; Severability; Remedies.  Any notice will be deemed given when personally delivered or 
delivered by facsimile or email transmission (with electronic confirmation of delivery), or will be 
deemed given three days following delivery of the notice by U.S. mail, certified, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid, by the applicable Party to the address shown in the preamble of this 
Agreement (or any other address that a Party may designate by notice to the other parties), unless 
that day is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, in which event it will be deemed delivered on the next 

Page 148Page 148Page 148



 

 Page 6 of 7 
 

following business day.  Each provision contained in this Agreement will be treated as a separate and 
independent provision.  The unenforceability of any one provision will in no way impair the 
enforceability of any other provision contained herein.  Any reading of a provision causing 
unenforceability will yield to a construction permitting enforcement to the maximum extent 
permitted by applicable law.  Subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, each 
Party will pay all wages and benefits due the Party’s personnel, including, without limitation, 
overtime, workers’ compensation, and death benefits.  If a Party breaches and/or otherwise fails to 
perform any of the Party’s representations, warranties, covenants, and/or obligations under this 
Agreement, the non-defaulting Parties may, in addition to any other remedy provided to the non-
defaulting Parties under this Agreement, pursue all remedies available to the non-defaulting Parties 
at law or in equity.  All available remedies are cumulative and may be exercised singularly or 
concurrently. 

 
9.3   Waiver; Entire Agreement; Amendment; Counterparts.  Notwithstanding anything 
contained in this Agreement to the contrary, no provision of this Agreement may be modified, 
waived, and/or discharged unless such waiver, modification, and/or discharge is agreed to in 
writing by the Parties.  No waiver by a Party at any time of the breach of, or lack of compliance 
with, any conditions or provisions of this Agreement will be deemed a waiver of other 
provisions or conditions hereof.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement and 
understanding between Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and 
contains all the terms and conditions of the Parties’ agreement and supersedes any other oral 
or written negotiations, discussions, representations, and/or agreements.  No addition, 
modification, amendment, or alteration to this Agreement will be effective against the Parties 
unless specifically agreed upon in writing and signed by the Parties.  This Agreement may be 
signed in one or more counterparts.   
 
9.4  Applicable Law; Venue; Attorney Fees.  This Agreement will be construed, applied, and enforced 
in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon.  Any action or proceeding arising out of this 
Agreement will be litigated in courts located in Crook County, Oregon.  Each Party consents and 
submits to the jurisdiction of any local, state, or federal court located in Crook County, Oregon.  With 
respect to any dispute relating to this Agreement, or if a suit, action, arbitration, or other proceeding 
of any nature whatsoever is instituted to interpret or enforce the provisions of this Agreement, 
including, without limitation, any proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code and involving issues 
peculiar to federal bankruptcy law or any action, suit, arbitration, or proceeding seeking a declaration 
of rights or rescission, each party is responsible for its own attorney fees, paralegal fees, expert fees, 
and all other fees, costs, and expenses incurred in connection therewith, as determined by the judge 
or arbitrator at trial, arbitration, or other proceeding, or on any appeal or review, in addition to all 
other amounts provided by law. 

 
9.5  Debts, Liabilities and Obligations.  All debts, liabilities and obligations of any of the 
Parties shall be and shall remain debts, liabilities and obligations of that or those Parties and 
shall not become debts liabilities and obligations of the other parties or of the Agency.  All 
debts, liabilities and obligations incurred by or on behalf of the Agency shall remain debts, 
liabilities and obligations of the Agency.    

 

Page 149Page 149Page 149



 

 Page 7 of 7 
 

9.6 Person, Interpretation, Signatures.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term “person” 
means any natural person, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, 
firm, association, trust, unincorporated organization, government or governmental agency or 
political subdivision, or any other entity.  All pronouns contained herein and any variations 
thereof will be deemed to refer to the masculine, feminine, or neutral, singular or plural, as 
the identity of the parties may require.  The singular includes the plural and the plural includes 
the singular.  The word “or” is not exclusive.  The words “include,” “includes,” and “including” 
are not limiting. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be binding and 
effective for all purposes as of the Effective Date. 
 
COUNTY:       CITY:  
Crook County Board of Commissioners   City of Prineville 
 
 
_____________________________   ______________________________  
Seth Crawford, Judge     Steve Forrester, City Manager 
 
_____________________________  
Jerry Brummer, Commissioner  
 
_____________________________  
Brian Barney, Commissioner  
 
 
 

Page 150Page 150Page 150



 

  
Date: 

  December 23, 2022 
 

Meeting date desired: 
January 4 & 18, 2022 

 

Subject: 
Application 217-22-002171-PLNG - First and second readings of the proposed text 
amendments to Title 18 of the Crook County Code recommended by the Planning 
Commission. 

 

Background and policy implications: 
Briefly provide the background of the item and the policy implications. 

 

Budget/fiscal impacts: 

Budget implications would only include the cost to adopt the changes through the 
online code publishing company.  

 

Requested by: 

Brent Bybee, Planning Manager, brent.bybee@crookcountyor.gov, 541-447-3211 
 

Presenters: 

Brent Bybee, Planning Manager 
 

Legal review (only if requested): 

Review of the final orders 
 
Elected official sponsor (if applicable): 

  N/A 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 

Page 151Page 151

mailto:brent.bybee@crookcountyor.gov


 

  
Date: 

  December 23, 2022 
 

Meeting date desired: 
January 4 & 18, 2022 

 

Subject: 
Application 217-22-002171-PLNG - First and second readings of the proposed text 
amendments to Title 18 of the Crook County Code recommended by the Planning 
Commission. 

 

Background and policy implications: 
Briefly provide the background of the item and the policy implications. 

 

Budget/fiscal impacts: 

Budget implications would only include the cost to adopt the changes through the 
online code publishing company.  

 

Requested by: 

Brent Bybee, Planning Manager, brent.bybee@crookcountyor.gov, 541-447-3211 
 

Presenters: 

Brent Bybee, Planning Manager 
 

Legal review (only if requested): 

Review of the final orders 
 
Elected official sponsor (if applicable): 

  N/A 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 

Page 152

mailto:brent.bybee@crookcountyor.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IN THE COUNTY COURT OF THE STATE OF OREGON  
FOR THE COUNTY OF CROOK 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE    ORDINANCE 336 
18 OF THE CROOK COUNTY CODE,  
ADOPTING ADDITIONAL PROCEDURAL  
CLARITY, STREAMLINING 
APPLICATION PROCESSES, AND  
EXPANDING OPTIONS FOR LOCAL 
RESIDENTS, AND DECLARING AN  
EMERGENCY 
 
 WHEREAS, from time to time it is helpful to review the County’s land use planning 
code provisions, to identify areas where typos can be corrected, additional clarity for applicants 
can be provided, and efficiencies can be promoted in conduct of the County’s land use 
responsibilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed changes described herein have been considered at a public 
hearing of the Crook County Planning Commission, which recommends that the County Court 
adopt such revisions. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Crook County Court ordains as follows: 
 
Section One: The above recitals and exhibits are adopted into and made a part of this Ordinance 
No. 336 as the County’s findings of fact. 
 
Section Two: Crook County Code section 18.08.030, “C definitions,” is amended to add an 
additional definition to read as depicted on the attached Exhibit A, with additions underlined and 
deletions struck through. 
 
Section Three: A new section, 18.124.160 “Domestic livestock kept solely for the purpose of a 
youth livestock project,” is added to the Crook County Code chapter 18.124, as depicted on 
Exhibit B. 
 
Section Four: The Use Table for Crook County Code section 18.16.010, use 9 is added and uses 
4.5 and 6.1 are amended to read as depicted on the attached Exhibit C, with additions underlined 
and deletions struck through. 

Page 153



 
Section Five: Crook County Code section 18.16.040, “Dwellings not in conjunction with farm 
use,” is amended to read as depicted on the attached Exhibit D, with additions underlined and 
deletions struck through. 
 
Section Six: Crook County Code section 18.16.075, “Development standards,” is amended to 
read as depicted on the attached Exhibit E, with additions underlined and deletions struck 
through. 
 
Section Seven: Crook County Code section 18.164.030, “Procedure for taking action on a 
variance application,” is amended to read as depicted on the attached Exhibit F, with additions 
underlined and deletions struck through. 
 
Section Eight: Crook County Code section 18.172.110, “Appeals,” is amended to read as 
depicted on the attached Exhibit G, with additions underlined and deletions struck through. 
 
Section Nine: Crook County Code section 18.116.100, “Approval criteria,” is amended to read 
as depicted on the attached Exhibit H, with additions underlined and deletions struck through. 
 
Section Ten: Crook County Code section 18.172.020, “Application,” is amended to read as 
depicted on the attached Exhibit I, with additions underlined and deletions struck through. 
 
Section Eleven: Crook County Code section 18.172.060, “Director decisions and extensions,” is 
amended to read as depicted on the attached Exhibit J, with additions underlined and deletions 
struck through. 
 
Section Eleven: Crook County Code section 18.160.070, “Permit expiration dates,” is amended 
to read as depicted on the attached Exhibit K, with additions underlined and deletions struck 
through. 
 
Section Eleven: Crook County Code section 18.172.100, “Revocation or modification of 
permit,” is amended to read as depicted on the attached Exhibit L, with additions underlined and 
deletions struck through. 
 
Section Twelve: If any court of competent authority invalidates a portion of this Ordinance 336, 
the remaining portions will continue in full force and effect. 
 
Section Twelve: Ordinance 336 being immediately necessary for health, welfare, and safety of 
the people of Crook County, and emergency is hereby declared to exist, and this Ordinance 336 
shall become effective upon signing.  
 
 
 
First Reading:    __________________ 
 
Second Reading:  __________________ 

Page 154



 
 
  
Dated this ______ day of ______, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Judge Seth Crawford 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Commissioner Jerry Brummer 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Commissioner Brian Barney 

 
 
Vote:   Aye Nay Excused 
Seth Crawford  ___ ___ _______ 
Jerry Brummer ___ ___ _______ 
Brian Barney  ___ ___ _______ 

Page 155



Exhibit A 
18.08 Definitions  

 
18.08.030 C definitions 
 
“Commercial event or activity” means any meeting, celebratory gathering, wedding, party, or similar 
uses consisting of any assembly of persons and the sale of goods or services. It does not include agri-
tourism. In CCC 18.16.055, a commercial event or activity shall be related to and supportive of 
agriculture. 

Page 156



Exhibit B 
18.160.124 Livestock Limitation 

 
18.124.160 Domestic livestock kept solely for the purpose of a youth livestock project 

 
(1) Domestic livestock as defined in CCC 18.08.120, where permitted by zoning, kept solely for the 

purpose of a youth livestock project such as 4-H or FFA, may be exempted from the square footage 
requirements of the underlying zone, provided that the following conditions are complied with. 

 
a. Evidence is provided to Community Development that the youth is officially enrolled in a youth 

livestock project such as 4-H or FFA and an outline of the planned project including animal types 
and numbers. 
 

b. The youth livestock project must comply at all times with applicable sanitation control and other 
requirements.  Failure to comply with sanitation control and other requirements may result in 
the cancellation of the exemption. 

 

Page 157



Exhibit C 
18.16.010 Use Table 

 
Table 1. Use Table for Exclusive Farm Use (EFU)  

  Use Use Type Review 
Procedure 

Subject To 

4 Mineral, Aggregate, Oil and Gas Uses       
4.5 Processing as defined by ORS 517.750 of aggregate into 

asphalt or Portland cement. 
C Planning 

Commission 
Hearing 

18.16.015(10) 
18.144 

6 Utility/solid waste disposal facilities 
 

   

6.1 Irrigation reservoirs, canals, delivery lines and those 
structures and accessory operational facilities, not 
including parks or other recreational structures and 
facilities, associated with a district as defined in ORS 
540.505. This provision does not include proposals within 
areas of special flood hazard, as identified by FEMA. 

STS A Notice and 
Opportunity for 
Hearing 
P 

 

9 Destination Resort  C Planning 
Commission 
Hearing 

18.116 

 
 

Page 158

https://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=517.750
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/CrookCounty/#!/CrookCounty18/CrookCounty1816.html#18.16.015


Exhibit D 
18.16.040 Dwellings Not in Conjunction with Farm Use 

 
18.16.040 Dwellings not in conjunction with farm use. 
 
(1) Nonfarm Dwelling. A nonfarm dwelling is subject to the following requirements: 

 
(a) The dwelling or activities associated with the dwelling will not force a significant change in or 
significantly increase the cost of accepted farming or forest practices on nearby lands devoted to 
farm or forest use. 

 
(2) Nonfarm Dwelling Suitability Standards. 

 
(a) The dwelling, including essential or accessory improvements or structures, is situated upon a 
lot or parcel, or, in the case of an existing lot or parcel, upon a portion of a lot or parcel, that is 
generally unsuitable land for the production of farm crops and livestock or merchantable tree 
species, considering the terrain, adverse soil or land conditions, drainage and flooding, vegetation, 
location and size of the tract. A new parcel or portion of an existing lot or parcel shall not be 
considered unsuitable solely because of size or location if it can reasonably be put to farm or 
forest use in conjunction with other land; and 
 
(b) A new parcel or portion of an existing lot or parcel is not “generally unsuitable” simply because 
it is too small to be farmed profitably by itself. If a parcel or portion of a lot or parcel can be sold, 
leased, rented or otherwise managed as a part of a commercial farm or ranch, then it is not 
“generally unsuitable.” A new parcel or portion of an existing lot or parcel is presumed to be 
suitable if it is composed predominantly of Class I – VI soils. Just because a new parcel or portion 
of an existing lot or parcel is unsuitable for one farm use does not mean it is not suitable for 
another farm use; or 
 
(c) If the lot or parcel is under forest assessment, the dwelling shall be situated upon generally 
unsuitable land for the production of merchantable tree species recognized by the forest practices 
rules, considering the terrain, adverse soil or land conditions, drainage and flooding, vegetation, 
location and size of the parcel. If a lot or parcel is under forest assessment, the area is not 
“generally unsuitable” simply because it is too small to be managed for forest production 
profitably by itself. If a lot or parcel under forest assessment can be sold, leased, rented or 
otherwise managed as a part of a forestry operation, it is not “generally unsuitable.” If a lot or 
parcel is under forest assessment, it is presumed suitable if it is composed predominantly of soils 
capable of producing 20 cubic feet of wood fiber per acre per year. If a lot or parcel is under forest 
assessment, to be found compatible and not seriously interfere with forest uses on surrounding 
land it must not force a significant change in forest practices or significantly increase the cost of 
those practices on the surrounding land. 

 
(3) The dwelling will not materially alter the stability of the overall land use pattern of the area. In 
determining whether a proposed nonfarm dwelling will alter the stability of the land use pattern in the 
area, the county shall consider the cumulative impact of nonfarm dwellings on other lots or parcels in 
the area similarly situated by applying the standards set forth in subsections (3)(a) through (c) of this 
section. If the application involves the creation of a new parcel for the nonfarm dwelling, the county 

Page 159



shall consider whether creation of the parcel will lead to creation of other nonfarm parcels, to the 
detriment of agriculture in the area by applying the standards set forth in subsections (3)(a) through (c) 
of this section. 

 
(a) Identify a study area for the cumulative impacts analysis. The study area shall include at least 
2,000 acres or a smaller area not less than 1,000 acres, if the smaller area is a distinct agricultural 
area based on topography, soil types, land use pattern, or the type of farm or ranch operations or 
practices that distinguish it from other, adjacent agricultural areas. Findings shall describe the 
study area, its boundaries, the location of the subject parcel within this area, why the selected 
area is representative of the land use pattern surrounding the subject parcel and is adequate to 
conduct the analysis required by this standard. Lands zoned for rural residential or other urban or 
nonresource uses shall not be included in the study area; 
 
(b) Identify within the study area the broad types of farm uses (irrigated or nonirrigated crops, 
pasture or grazing lands), the number, location and type of existing dwellings (farm, nonfarm, 
hardship, etc.), and the dwelling development trends since 1993. Determine the potential number 
of nonfarm/lot of record dwellings that could be approved under CCC 18.16.035(1) and this 
section, including identification of predominant soil classifications, the parcels created prior to 
January 1, 1993, and the parcels larger than the minimum lot size that may be divided to create 
new parcels for nonfarm dwellings under ORS 215.263(4), 215.263(5), and 215.284(4). The 
findings shall describe the existing land use pattern of the study area including the distribution 
and arrangement of existing uses and the land use pattern that could result from approval of the 
possible nonfarm dwellings under this subsection; and 
 
(c) Determine whether approval of the proposed nonfarm/lot of record dwellings together with 
existing nonfarm dwellings will materially alter the stability of the land use pattern in the area. 
The stability of the land use pattern will be materially altered if the cumulative effect of existing 
and potential nonfarm dwellings will make it more difficult for the existing types of farms in the 
area to continue operation due to diminished opportunities to expand, purchase or lease 
farmland, acquire water rights or diminish the number of tracts or acreage in farm use in a 
manner that will destabilize the overall character of the study area; and 

 
(4) If a single-family dwelling is established on a lot or parcel as set forth in Use 2.4 in Table 1, no 
additional dwelling may later be sited under the provisions of this section. 
 
(5) The dwelling will be sited on a lot or parcel created before January 1, 1993; if the lot or parcel was 
created after that date, the lot or parcel must have been approved through the provisions of 
CCC 18.16.070(3) or (4). 
 
(6) Pursuant to ORS 215.236, a nonfarm dwelling on a lot or parcel in an Exclusive Farm Use zone that is 
or has been receiving special assessment may be approved only on the condition that before a building 
permit is issued the applicant must produce evidence from the County Assessor's office that the parcel 
upon which the dwelling is proposed has been disqualified under ORS 308A.050 to 308A.128 or other 
special assessment under ORS 308A.315, 321.257 to 321.390, 321.700 to 321.754 or 321.805 to 321.855 
and that any additional tax or penalty imposed by the County Assessor as a result of disqualification has 
been paid. 
 

Page 160

https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/CrookCounty/#!/CrookCounty18/CrookCounty1816.html#18.16.035
https://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=215.263
https://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=215.263
https://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=215.284
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/CrookCounty/#!/CrookCounty18/CrookCounty1816.html#18.16.070


(67) All new nonfarm dwellings on existing parcels within the deer and elk winter ranges must meet the 
residential density limitations found in Wildlife Policy 2 of the Crook County comprehensive plan. 
Compliance with the residential density limitations may be demonstrated by calculating a one-mile 
radius (or 2,000-acre) study area. An applicant may use a different study area size or shape to 
demonstrate compliance with Wildlife Policy 2, provided the methodology and size of the study area are 
explained and are found to be consistent with the purpose of Crook County comprehensive plan Wildlife 
Policy 2. 
 
(78) All new nonfarm dwellings on existing lots or parcels proposed within the Paulina Ranches or 
Riverside Ranches subdivisions, which are in the county’s EFU-1 zone and were created prior to January 
1, 1993, shall require a minimum of 20 acres for the nonfarm dwelling. 

 
(a) The 20-acre requirement for these subdivisions may be met either by a single lot or parcel 
which is at least 20 acres or through multiple, separate lots or parcels within the same subdivision 
in common ownership, which in the aggregate total 20 acres or more. For the purposes of this 
section, Riverside Ranch Unit 1 is treated as a separate subdivision and Riverside Ranch Units 2 
and 3, together, are treated as a separate subdivision. The aggregation of lots or parcels for the 
purposes of this section must be contiguous in Paulina Ranches and Riverside Ranch Unit 1. 
(b) Where multiple lots or parcels in common ownership are the basis to meet the 20-acre 
requirement, upon approval of a nonfarm dwelling and prior to the issuance of a building permit, 
the applicant/owner shall record a deed restriction with the county clerk limiting the further 
development of any lots or parcels used by the applicant/owner to meet the 20-acre requirement. 
(Ord. 330 § 8 (Exh. G), 2022; Ord. 326 § 3 (Att. A), 2021; Ord. 309 § 2 (Exh. C), 2019) 

 
(9) The dwelling complies with such other conditions as the governing body or its designee considers 
necessary.  

Page 161



Exhibit E 
18.16.075 Development Standards 

 
18.16.075 Development standards 
All dwellings and structures approved pursuant Table 1 shall be sited in accordance with this section. 
 
(1) Lot Size Standards. Lot size shall be consistent with the requirements of CCC 18.16.070. 
 
(2) In an EFU zone, the minimum setback of a residence or habitable structure shall be 100 feet from a 
property line.  

 
(a) Front setback shall be  

 
i. 20 feet from the property line, for a property fronting on a local minor collector or marginal 
access street.  
 
ii. 30 feet from a property line fronting on a major collector ROW. 
 
iii. 80 feet from an arterial ROW unless other provisions for combining accesses are provided 
and approved by the county. 

 
(b) Each side setback shall be a minimum of 20 feet from property line, except corner lots where the 
side yard on the street side shall be a minimum of 30 feet. 

 
(c) Rear setback shall be a minimum of 25 feet from property line. 

 
(d) If a parcel in the EFU zone is nonbuildable as a result of the habitable structure setback 
requirements, the reviewing authority commission may consider a variance in accordance with CCC 
18.164 conditional use application from the land owner to adjust the setback requirements to make 
the parcel buildable. 

 
(3) The minimum setbacks for all accessory structures are: 
 

(a) Front yard setback shall be 20 feet for property fronting on a local minor collector or marginal 
access street, 30 feet from a property line fronting on a major collector ROW, and 80 feet from an 
arterial ROW unless other provisions for combining accesses are provided and approved by the 
county. 
 
(b) Each side yard shall be a minimum of 20 feet, except corner lots where the side yard on the 
street side shall be a minimum of 30 feet. 
 
(c) Rear yards shall be a minimum of 25 feet. (Ord. 309 § 2 (Exh. C), 2019) 

Page 162

https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/CrookCounty/#!/CrookCounty18/CrookCounty1816.html#18.16.070


Exhibit F 
18.164 Variances 

 
18.164.030 Procedure for taking action on a variance application. 
 
The procedure for taking action on an application for a variance shall be as follows  
 
(1) A property owner may initiate a request for a variance by filing an application with the planning 
department, using forms prescribed pursuant to CCC 18.172.040. Application shall be filed 21 days prior 
to the planning commission meeting of submittal thereto. 
 
(2) Before the planning commission may act on a variance application, it shall hold a public hearing 
thereon, following procedure as established in CCC 18.172.050. 
 
(3) Within five days after a decision has been rendered with reference to a variance application, the 
planning director shall provide the applicant with written notice of the decision of the commission. (Ord. 
18 § 7.030, 2003) 
 
See Chapter 18.172 CCC for the procedure for taking action on a variance application. 

Page 163

https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/CrookCounty/#!/CrookCounty18/CrookCounty18172.html#18.172.040
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/CrookCounty/#!/CrookCounty18/CrookCounty18172.html#18.172.050
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/CrookCounty/#!/CrookCounty18/CrookCounty18172.html#18.172


Exhibit G 
18.172.110 Administration Provisions (Appeals) 

 
18.172.110 Appeals. 
 
(1) Every land use decision relating to the provisions of this title made by the director, planning 
commission, or hearing officer is subject to review when appealed within 12 calendar days of the date 
the decision was mailed in accordance with state statutes and the following provisions. 
 
(2) The filing of an appeal in accordance with the provisions of this section initiates the appeal process 
and stays the order of the decision appealed. The process shall include appropriate public notice, a 
public hearing, and the preparation of findings by that authority which either affirms, amends, or 
reverses the decision appealed. 
 
(3) All hearings of appeal from an administrative determination shall be de novo. 
 
(4) All hearings of appeal from a planning commission final decision shall be based on the record made 
before the planning commission. 
 
(5) A final decision not to adopt a legislative matter is not appealable. 
 
(6) Appeals may be filed only by the following parties: 

 
(a) The applicant or the authorized agent of the applicant; or 
 
(b) Any person or county official testifying at the public hearing or who provided written 
comments may appeal a decision. 

 
(7) The appellate body may review a lower determination or decision upon its own motion by issuing a 
written order to that effect on the lower body within 10 working days of the date the determination or 
decision becomes final. The appellate body must cause notice to be given to the parties involved within 
three working days of the appellate body’s order to review. 
 
(8) Appellate Body. 

 
(a) The appellate body for appeals from administrative determinations of the director shall be 
the planning commission. 
 
(b) The appellate body for appeals from final decisions of the planning commission shall be the 
county court, unless the county court orders the appeal be sent directly to the Oregon Land Use 
Board of Appeals as the final decision of the county. 
 
(c) Appeals from decisions of the county court shall be in conformance with the applicable ORS 
provisions. 

 
(9) Filing Requirements. 

 

Page 164



(a) Appeals shall be complete and the appellate body shall have jurisdiction to hear the matter 
appealed if all the following occur: 

 
(i) The appeal shall be in writing on the form prescribed by the director and shall 
contain: 

 
(A) Name and address of the appellant(s) 
 
(B) Reference to the application title and case number, if any. 

 
(ii) A statement of the nature of the decision: 

 
(A) A statement of the specific grounds for the appeal, setting forth the error(s) 
and the basis of the error(s) sought to be reviewed; and 
 
(B) A statement as to the appellant’s standing to appeal as an affected party. 

 
(iii) Proper filing fee in accordance with CCC 18.172.050. 
 
(iv) The Wwritten notice of appeal and proper filing fee must be filed received at the 
office of the Crook County Community Development Department within 12 calendar 
days of the decision, no later than 4:00 PM the end of business on the twelfth day, with 
the appropriate person. 

 
(A) To the planning commission from an administrative determination by the 
director; 
 
(B) To the county court for appeals from final decisions by the planning 
commission. 

 
(10) Notice and Hearing of the Appeal. 

 
(a) If the director determines that the facts stated in the notice of appeal meet the requirement 
for a hearing, a time and date shall be set for such hearing to be held not later than 60 calendar 
days after receipt of the notice of appeal. 
 
(b) If the appeal is dismissed, the reasons will be provided in writing how the application has not 
met the requirements for an appeal. Upon dismissal, the appealed decision is final. 
 
(c) If the appellate body is the county court, the county court may order the appeal sent directly 
to the Land Use Board of Appeals as the final decision of the county without an appeal hearing. 
 
(d) For an appeal of a planning commission decision to the county court, at least 10 calendar 
days prior to the appeal hearing, the hearing authority shall give notice of time, place and the 
particular nature of the appeal. Notice shall be published in the newspaper and be sent by mail 
to the appellant(s), to the applicant (if different) and those persons who testified at the subject 
hearing where a hearing was held and affected parties in accordance with this section. 
 

Page 165



(e) For an appeal of an administrative decision to the planning commission, the notice 
requirements of CCC 18.172.070 shall apply. 

 
(11) Transcript. The appellant shall provide a copy of the transcript of the relevant portions of the 
planning commission proceedings appealed from to the department seven calendar days before the 
hearing date set by the county court. The county court, in its sole discretion, may waive the requirement 
that the appellant provide a transcript for the appeal hearing. A request to waive the transcript 
requirement shall be made in writing to the Community Development Department no later than 14 days 
after filing appeal is filed. Nothing herein prevents the county court from waiving the transcript 
requirement on its own motion.  
 
(12) Scope and Standard of Review of Appeal. 

 
(a) On the Record Review. The appeal is not a new hearing; it is a review of the decision below. 
Subject to the exception in subsection (12)(a)(vi) of this section, the review of the final decision 
shall be confined to the record of the proceedings below, which shall include, if applicable: 

 
(i) All materials, pleadings, memoranda, stipulations and motions submitted by any party to 
the proceeding and received by the planning commission as evidence. 
 
(ii) All materials submitted by Crook County staff with respect to the application. 
 
(iii) The transcript of the relevant portions of the planning commission hearing. 
 
(iv) The written final decision of the planning commission and the petition of appeal. 
 
(v) Written Aargument (without introduction of new or additional evidence) may be 
submitted prior to the close of the appeal hearing by the applicant, appellants, and other 
parties of record. At the appellate body’s discretion, they can elect to allow oral argument at 
the appeal hearing. 
 
(vi) The appellate body may, at its option, admit additional testimony and other evidence 
from a an interested party or party of record to supplement the record of prior proceedings. 
The record may be supplemented by order of the appellate body or upon written motion by 
a party. The written motion shall set forth with particularity the basis for such request and 
the nature of the evidence sought to be introduced. Prior to supplementing the record, the 
appellate body shall provide an opportunity for all parties to be heard on the matter. The 
appellate body may grant the motion upon a finding that the supplement is necessary to 
take into consideration the inconvenience of locating the evidence at the time of initial 
hearing, with such inconvenience not being the result of negligence or dilatory act by the 
moving party. 
 

(b) Standard of Review on Appeal. The burden of proof in a hearing shall be as allocated by 
applicable law. The burden shall remain with the applicant to show that relevant criteria were met 
for an application throughout the local appeal process. For an appeal on the record, an appellant 
shall have the burden to articulate reasons why the initial decision is in error. 

 

Page 166



(13) Appellate Decisions. Following hearing the appeal, the appellate body may affirm, overrule, or 
modify the decision and shall set forth findings showing compliance with applicable standards and 
criteria. The appellate body may also remand the decision with instructions to the planning commission, 
hearing officer or director who made the original decision to consider additional facts, issues or criteria 
not previously addressed. 
 
(14) A decision made on remand is a new decision and may be appealed as described in subsections (1) 
through (13) of this section. (Ord. 330 § 10 (Exh. I), 2022; Ord. 321 § 4, 2020; Ord. 317 § 6, 2020; Ord. 
236 § 5 (Exh. E), 2010; Ord. 231 § 1 (Exh. A), 2010; Ord. 18 § 9.110, 2003) 

Page 167



Exhibit H 
18.116.100 Destination Resort Overlay 

 
18.116.100 Approval criteria. 
The planning commission or county court shall approve a development plan for a destination resort if it 
determines that all of the following criteria are met: 
 
(1) The tract where the development is proposed is eligible for destination resort siting, as depicted on 
the acknowledged destination resort overlay map. 
 
(2) The development plan contains the elements required by CCC 18.116.080. 
 
(3) The proposed development meets the standards established in CCC 18.116.040 or 18.116.050, 
qualifying as a destination resort or a small destination resort, respectively. 
 
(4) The uses included in the destination resort are either permitted uses listed in CCC 18.116.060, or 
accessory uses listed in CCC 18.116.070 that are ancillary to the destination resort and consistent with 
the purposes of this chapter. (5) The development will be reasonably compatible with surrounding land 
uses, particularly farming and forestry operations. The destination resort will not cause a significant 
change in farm or forest practices on surrounding lands or significantly increase the cost of accepted 
farm or forest practices. 
 
(5) The development will be reasonably compatible with surrounding land uses, particularly farming and 
forestry operations. The destination resort will not cause a significant change in farm or forest practices 
on surrounding lands or significantly increase the cost of accepted farm or forest practices. 
 
(6) The development will not have a significant adverse impact on fish and wildlife, taking into account 
mitigation measures. 
 
(7)(a) The traffic study required by CCC 18.116.080(3)(g) illustrates that the proposed development will 
not significantly affect a transportation facility or will comply with subsection (7)(b) of this section.  

 
(a) A resort development will significantly affect a transportation facility for purposes of this 
approval criterion if it would, at any point within a 20-year planning period: 

 
(i) Change the functional classification of the transportation facility; 
 
(ii) Result in levels of travel or access which are inconsistent with the functional 
classification of the transportation facility; or 
 
(iii) Reduce the performance standards of the transportation facility below the minimum 
acceptable level identified in the applicable transportation system plan (TSP). 

 
(b) If the traffic study required by CCC 18.116.080(3)(g) illustrates that the proposed 
development will significantly affect a transportation facility, the applicant for the destination 
resort shall assure that the development will be consistent with the identified function, capacity, 
and level of service of the facility through one or more of the following methods: 

Page 168



 
(i) Limiting the development to be consistent with the planned function, capacity and 
level of service of the transportation facility; 
 
(ii) Providing transportation facilities adequate to support the proposed development 
consistent with Chapter 660 OAR, Division 12; or 
 
(iii) Altering land use densities, design requirements or using other methods to reduce 
demand for automobile travel and to meet travel needs through other modes. 

 
(c) Where the option of providing transportation facilities is chosen in accordance with 
subsection (7)(6)(b)(ii) of this section, the applicant shall be required to provide the 
transportation facilities to the full standards of the affected authority as a condition of approval. 
Timing of such improvements shall be based upon the timing of the impacts created by the 
development, as determined by the traffic study or the recommendations of the affected road 
authority. 

 
(8)(7) The water and sewer facilities master plan required by CCC 18.116.080(3)(b) illustrates that 
proposed water and sewer facilities can reasonably serve the destination resort. 
 
(9)(8) The development complies with other applicable standards of the county zoning ordinance. (Ord. 
18 § 12.100, 2003) 

Page 169



Exhibit I 
18.172.020 Administration Provisions (Application) 

 
18.172.020 Application. 
 
(1) The applicant shall submit an application to the director on forms provided by the county. 
 
(2) An application is not considered accepted until all applicable fee(s) are paid to the county and all 
required materials of that application are submitted. 
 
(3) Acceptance of the application indicates only that the application is ready for processing and review. 
It does not represent the application has been deemed complete. Acceptance of an application shall not 
preclude a determination at a later date that additional criteria need to be addressed and/or that the 
application is incomplete. 
 
(4) An application is deemed to be complete when, in the judgment of the director, all applicable 
approval criteria have been adequately addressed in the application, supplemental materials provided 
by the applicant, and all applicable fees have been paid to the county. 
 
(5) If an application is incomplete, the director shall, within 30 days of accepting the application, notify 
the applicant in writing of what information is missing. The application will be deemed complete upon 
receipt of: 

 
(a) All of the information. 
 
(b) Some of the missing information and written notice from the applicant that no other 
information will be provided; or 
 
(c) Written notice from the applicant that none of the missing information will be provided. 

 
(6) If the applicant submits the missing information within 180 days of the date the application was 
accepted in accordance with CCC 18.172.020(3) notice sent in subsection (5) of this section, the 
application shall be deemed complete upon receipt of the missing information. 
 
(7) For lands located within the urban growth boundary and for applications for mineral aggregate 
extraction, the approval authority shall act upon a completed application within 120 calendar days after 
the application is deemed complete of the filing of a completed application. For all other permit 
applications, the approval authority shall act upon a completed application within 150 calendar days 
after the application is deemed complete of filing of a completed application. Such time limitations can 
be extended with the consent of the applicant. (Ord. 330 § 10 (Exh. I), 2022; Ord. 317 § 6, 2020; Ord. 
236 § 5 (Exh. E), 2010; Ord. 231 § 1 (Exh. A), 2010; Ord. 216 § 2, 2009; Ord. 18 § 9.020, 2003) 

Page 170



Exhibit J 
18.172.060 Director decisions and extensions. 

 
18.172.060 Director decisions and extensions. 
 
(1) Administrative Decisions. 

 
(a) Subject to ORS 215.416(11), the director shall have the authority to make an administrative 
determination on a land use application as set forth in specific zones in this title. 
 
(b) After receiving a complete application for an administrative determination, the director shall 
make a determination and, if approved, issue a permit to the applicant in accordance with the 
requirements of ORS 215.427. 
 
(c) The director shall cause a written notice of administrative determination and of the appeal 
procedure to be given to the applicant and to those persons who would have had a right to notice 
under this title if a hearing had been scheduled or who are adversely affected or aggrieved by the 
administrative determination. Such notice shall be given in accordance with the requirements of 
ORS 215.416(11). 

 
(2) Approval Period and Extensions. 

 
(a) A request for an extension to a land use approval shall be handled administratively by the 
director without public notice or hearing, and is not subject to appeal as a land use decision. 
 
(b) A land use approval is void two years after the date the decision becomes final if the use 
approved in the permit is not initiated within that time period, except as provided in subsection 
(2)(c) of this section or as otherwise provided under applicable ordinance provisions. 
 
(c) The approval period for conditional use permits issued under Chapter 18.160 CCC and the 
following dwellings in the exclusive farm use zones (Chapter 18.16 CCC, EFU, and Chapter 18.112 
CCC, EFU-JA) and forest use zone (Chapter 18.28 CCC, F-1) is four years: 

 
(i) Nonfarm dwelling; 
 
(ii) Lot of record dwelling; 
 
(iii) Large tract dwelling; 
 
(iv) Template dwelling; 
 
(v) Alteration, restoration or replacement of a lawfully established dwelling in the forest use 
zone; 

 
(vi) Caretaker residences for public parks and public fish hatcheries. 

 

Page 171



(d) Except for the dwellings listed in subsection (2)(c) of this section, the director shall grant up to 
four two-year extensions to a land use approval regardless of whether the applicable criteria have 
changed (except where state law precludes), if: 

 
(i) An applicant makes a written request for an extension of the development approval period; 
and 
 
(ii) The request, along with the appropriate fee, is submitted to the county prior to the 
expiration of the approval period. 

 
(e) Notwithstanding CCC 18.160.070, the director shall grant one two-year extension for a dwelling 
permit described in subsection (2)(c) of this section if the applicant submits the information required 
by subsections (2)(d)(i) and (ii) of this section. The director may grant up to five additional one-year 
extensions for a dwelling permit described in subsection (2)(c) of this section if: 

 
(i) The applicant makes a written request for the additional extension prior to the expiration of 
an extension. 
 
(ii) The applicable residential development statute has not been amended following approval of 
the permit. 
 
(iii) An applicable rule or land use regulation has not been amended following the issuance of 
the permit, unless allowed by the county, which may require that the applicant comply with the 
amended rule or land use regulation. 

 
(f) For all temporary uses granted under this title, the director shall grant one six-month extension. 
 
(g) Approval of a modification to a land use approval pursuant to CCC 18.172.100 shall be treated as 
a new final decision for purposes of calculating the expiry provisions of subsections (2)(b) and (d) of 
this section and CCC 18.172.100(2).  

 
(3) For the purposes of this section, the term “initiate” or “initiated” means that substantial construction 
towards completion of the conditional use permit has taken place. Substantial construction has occurred 
when the land and/or structure has been physically altered or the use changed, and such alteration or 
change is directed toward completion and is sufficient in terms of time, labor, or money spent to 
demonstrate a good faith effort to complete the development. 

Page 172



Exhibit K 
18.160.070 Permit expiration dates. 

 
18.160.070 Permit expiration dates. 
 
(1) A conditional use shall be void after four years unless development action has been initiated, the 
proposed use has occurred or the county has granted an extension of time in accordance with 
subsection (2) of this section. 
 
(2) The county shall grant two-year extensions to the four-year time period set forth in subsection (1) of 
this section as planning director decisions pursuant to CCC 18.172.060(2). 
 
(3) For the purposes of this section, the term “initiate development” means that substantial 
construction towards completion of the conditional use permit has taken place. Substantial construction 
has occurred when the land and/or structure has been physically altered or the use changed and such 
alteration or change is directed toward completion and is sufficient in terms of time, labor or money 
spent to demonstrate a good faith effort to complete the development. (Ord. 236 § 3 (Exh. C), 2010; 
Ord. 216 § 2, 2009; Ord. 178 §§ 1 – 3, 2007; Ord. 18 § 6.070, 2003) 
 
Permit expiration dates and permit extensions for conditional uses are as stated in CCC 18.172.060. 

Page 173



Exhibit L 
18.172.100 Revocation or modification of permit 

 
18.172.100 Revocation or modification of permit. 
 
(1) The hearing authority may revoke or modify any permit granted under the provisions of this title on 
any one or more of the following grounds: 

(a) For fraud, concealment, or misrepresentation or on the basis of wrong information supplied on 
the application, or given at a public hearing which materially relates to the reasons on which the 
permit was granted. 

(b) The use for which such permit was granted is not being exercised within the time limit set 
forth by the commission or this title. 

(c) The use for which such permit was granted has ceased to exist or has been suspended for one 
year or more. 

(d) The permit granted is being or recently has been exercised contrary to the terms or conditions 
of such approval. 

(e) The proposed modification will result in a change to the original proposal sought by the 
permittee or permittee’s successor and meets the applicable standards specified in subsection (3) 
of this section. 

(2) Any modified permit granted pursuant to this title shall become null and void if not exercised within 
the time period specified in such permit, or, if no time period is specified in the modified permit, subject 
to CCC 18.172.060. Appeals to higher state authorities challenging a modified permit approval shall toll 
the running of the periods provided in this section. 

(3) The hearing authority shall hold a public hearing on any proposed revocation or modification 
requested by the hearing authority or the permittee after giving written notice to the permittee and 
other affected persons as set forth in this title. The hearing authority shall hold a public hearing on any 
proposed revocation or modification after giving written notice to the permittee and other affected 
persons as set forth in this title. The hearing on the decision, which is subject to revocation or 
modification, is subject only to either the standards, criteria and conditions that were applicable when 
the original permit was issued or in effect at the time of the revocation or modification, whichever is less 
restrictive. The hearing authority shall render its decision within 45 calendar days after the conclusion of 
the hearing. (Ord. 330 § 10 (Exh. I), 2022; Ord. 323 § 6 (Att. A), 2021; Ord. 317 § 6, 2020; Ord. 236 § 5 
(Exh. E), 2010; Ord. 18 § 9.100, 2003) 

 
 

 
 

Page 174

https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/CrookCounty/#!/CrookCounty18/CrookCounty18172.html#18.172.060


Crook County Community Development Department 
Planning Division 

300 NE 3rd Street, Room 12 
 Prineville, OR 97754 

(541)447-3211 
plan@co.crook.or.us  

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION TO CROOK COUNTY COURT 
PROPOSED ZONING CODE AMENDMENTS 217-22-002171-PLNG 

 
January 4, 2023 
 
APPLICANT: Crook County Community Development Department  

 
REQUEST:    Crook County staff identified code language updates to: 

• Bring zoning ordinances into compliance with current State statutes and regulations; 
• Provide clear and objective criteria within the zoning ordinance to provide for greater 

understanding of requirements; 
• Allow for local flexibility in interpreting code language; 
• Edit code language that is incorrect; 
• Delete references to outdated or removed sections. 

 
Specifically, the proposed code amendments consist of clarifying updates and housekeeping 
revisions to Title 18 of the Crook County Code.  The proposal includes the following: 

 
• Define a Commercial Event or Activity to align with the agri-tourism criteria to match state 

code, and provides clear direction to the public; 
• Codify what has been a long-standing County policy Amends the criteria related to youth 

livestock projects; 
• Amends the code to reflect state statute requirements for the disqualification of special 

assessment when a nonfarm dwelling has been approved, and allows additional conditions 
that are necessary. 

• Update the Farm Use Table with correct links to applicable criteria for aggregate, clarifies 
and modifies review procedure to irrigation projects, and adds Destination Resort with use 
type, review procedure and link to applicable criteria; 

• Directly links to the procedures within CCC 18.172 for Variance application; 
• Within CCC 18.172: grammatical corrections; deadline for a Planning Commission to sign a 

final decision; clarification on the approval period for extensions. 
 
The Planning Commission held a work session on November 9, 2022, to discuss the proposed changes and a 
public hearing on December 14, 2022. No testimony or exhibits were entered into the record, and they did not 
direct staff to make any further editorial changes.   
 
I. APPLICABLE CRITERIA 

 
Oregon Revised Statutes  
Chapter 197 Comprehensive Land Use Planning 

ORS 197.610 - Submission of proposed comprehensive plan or land use regulation changes to 
Department of Land Conservation and Development 

Page 175



 

 
FINDINGS:  Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 197.610 applies to submission of proposed comprehensive plan or 
land use changes to the Department of Land Conservation and Development.   
 

Oregon Revised Statutes 
 

Chapter 197 Comprehensive Land Use Planning 
 

197.610 Submission of proposed comprehensive plan or land use regulation changes to Department 
of Land Conservation and Development; rules.  

 
(1) Before a local government adopts a change, including additions and deletions, to an acknowledged 
comprehensive plan or a land use regulation, the local government shall submit the proposed change 
to the Director of the Department of Land Conservation and Development. The Land Conservation and 
Development Commission shall specify, by rule, the deadline for submitting proposed changes, but in all 
cases the proposed change must be submitted at least 20 days before the local government holds the 
first evidentiary hearing on adoption of the proposed change. The commission may not require a local 
government to submit the proposed change more than 35 days before the first evidentiary hearing. 

 
FINDING: The County submitted notice to the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) on 
November 9, 2022. Public notice was published in the Central Oregonian on November 17, 2022, for the initial 
Planning Commission hearing. Public notice was published in the Central Oregonian on December 20, 2022, for 
the initial County Court Public Hearing. 
    

(2) If a local government determines that emergency circumstances beyond the control of the local 
government require expedited review, the local government shall submit the proposed changes as soon 
as practicable, but may submit the proposed changes after the applicable deadline. 

 
FINDING: The county has not determined that emergency circumstances require an expedited review, and the 
applicable deadlines will be met. The criterion does not apply. 
       

(3) Submission of the proposed change must include all of the following materials: 
       

(a) The text of the proposed change to the comprehensive plan or land use regulation 
implementing the plan; 

 
(b) If a comprehensive plan map or zoning map is created or altered by the proposed change, a 
copy of the map that is created or altered; 

 
(c) A brief narrative summary of the proposed change and any supplemental information that the 
local government believes may be useful to inform the director or members of the public of the 
effect of the proposed change; 

 
(d) The date set for the first evidentiary hearing; 

 
(e) The form of notice or a draft of the notice to be provided under ORS 197.763, if applicable; and 

 
(f) Any staff report on the proposed change or information describing when the staff report will be 
available, and how a copy of the staff report can be obtained. 

 Page 176



Page 177



 

Crook County 
Community Development Department 

Planning Division 
300 NE 3rd Street, Room 12 

 Prineville, OR 97754 
(541)447-3211 

Text Amendment 
Record number 217-22-002171-PLNG 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Crook County Court will hold public hearings at 9:00 a.m. on 
Wednesday, January 4 & 18, 2023 in the Crook County Meeting Room, 320 NE Court Street, 
Prineville, Oregon, to consider the following: 
 
Amendments to Crook County Code to reflect scriveners errors, including citations, remove incorrect 
information and better align with Oregon Revised Statutes. The hearing is being held pursuant to Crook 
County Code, Title 18 Zoning; Chapter 18.168 Legislative Amendments. 
 
Written testimony or comments may be submitted to the Crook County Community Development 
Department by email at Plan@co.crook.or.us, and may also be submitted in person or by mail to 300 NE 
3rd St, Room 12, Prineville, OR 97754. Written testimony received by December 28, 2022, at 4:00 pm, 
will be considered by staff prior to the issuance of the staff report and recommendation on this 
application. However, written testimony will continue to be accepted until the record closes, which may 
occur as soon as the conclusion of the public hearing. Failure to raise an issue in the hearing, in person 
or by letter, or failure to provide sufficient specificity to afford the decision maker an opportunity to 
respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue 
 
The application, copies of submitted materials, and testimony are available by calling the planning 
department at 541-447-3211 or emailing us at Plan@co.crook.or.us.  Documents are also available on 
the county court’s website at no cost:  https://co.crook.or.us/county-admin. Hard copies may be 
provided as well in accordance with the planning departments fee schedule. A copy of the staff report 
will also be available at the above link 7 days prior to the hearing at no cost, with hard copies available 
as well in accordance with the planning departments fee schedule.  
 
Crook County encourages persons with disabilities to participate in all programs and activities. This 
event/location is accessible to people with disabilities. If you need accommodations to make 
participation possible, please call (541)447-3211. 
 
Crook County will be holding this hearing by WebEx conference call.  
 
People may participate in the January 4 hearing by calling the following number: +1-408-418-9388, 
126 320 5412 ## United States Toll 
 
Meeting number (access code): 126 320 5412 
Meeting password: VFmR4z4PaM3 
Attendee ID: press # 
Please call 541-447-3211 if you have questions. 
 
People may participate in the January 18 hearing by calling the following number: +1-408-418-9388, 

Page 178

mailto:Plan@co.crook.or.us
https://co.crook.or.us/county-admin


126 538 6281 ## United States Toll 
 
Meeting number (access code): 126 538 6281 
Meeting password: jEnpYBsq933 
Attendee ID: press # 
Please call 541-447-3211 if you have questions. 
 
 
 

Page 179


	CROOK COUNTY COURT AGENDA
	Agenda Item Request_fillable1
	Brewer, Dennis
	Date:
	Meeting date desired:
	Subject:
	Background and policy implications:
	Budget/fiscal impacts:
	Requested by:
	Presenters:
	Legal review (only if requested):
	Elected official sponsor (if applicable):
	Date:
	Meeting date desired:
	Subject:
	Background and policy implications:
	Budget/fiscal impacts:
	Requested by:
	Presenters:
	Legal review (only if requested):
	Elected official sponsor (if applicable):
	Agenda Item Request_217-22-002171-PLNG - Text Amendments
	Date:
	Meeting date desired:
	Subject:
	Background and policy implications:
	Budget/fiscal impacts:
	Requested by:
	Presenters:
	Legal review (only if requested):
	Elected official sponsor (if applicable):

	Ordinance 336
	Table 1. Use Table for Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) 

	County Court Staff Report 217-22-002171-PLNG
	217-22-002171-PLNG Newspaper Hearing Notice

	Date: January 4, 2023
	date desired: January 18, 2023
	subject: Promote Dennis Brewer to Interim Veteran's Director. 
	background: Dennis Brewer has been selected as the interim veteran service director, per County policy he will receive an increase in pay. 
	budget: Interim director position is within budget due to director position being vacated. 
	Requested by: Kim Barber, HR Directorkim.barber@co.crook.or.us
	presenters: n/a
	Legal Review: n/a
	Elected official: n/a
	Check Box1: Yes
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box9: Yes
	Employee Name Last First Name Ml: Brewer, Dennis
	Check Box3: Yes
	Check Box13: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box29: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box6: Off
	Check Box26: Off
	Check Box27: Off
	Check Box28: Off
	Effective Date: 01.09.2023
	Check Box15: Off
	Check Box17: Off
	Check Box16: Off
	Replaces: 
	Position: 
	Reason: 
	FTE eg 10 80: 
	FTE eg 10 80 new: 
	Hours Per DayScheduled Days: 
	Hours Per DayScheduled Days new: 
	DeptOffice: Veterans
	DeptOffice new: Veterans
	Position Job Title: VSO
	Position Job Title new: Interim Direc Veterans Serv
	Salary GradeStep: 115/4
	Salary GradeStep new: 115/4
	Salary: $21.89 hr
	Salary new: $21.89 hr plus $303.35 per pay period
	Certification: 
	Certification new: 
	Check Box18: Yes
	Check Box19: Off
	Check Box20: Off
	Check Box21: Yes
	Comments: Special Assignment Pay $303.35 per pay period.
	Check Box22: Off
	Check Box23: Off
	Check Box24: Off
	Check Box25: Off
	budget: Will not have any budget or fiscal impacts.
	Requested by: Kim Herber, Extension Service District Manager, 541-447-6228, kim.herber@oregonstate.edu
	background: Extension Service District Advisory Board member, Susan Hermreck, term has expired and she is willing to be on the board for another term.
	subject: Extension Service District Advisory Board member application.
	date desired: January 10, 2023
	Date: January 4, 2023
	presenters: Kim Herber
	Legal Review: 
	Elected official: 
	budget: The grant from COHC covers the costs associated with this position, and then some. The budget was approved by COHC at a higher compensation than Crook County is able to offer.
	Requested by: Katie Plumb, Health & Human Services Directorkplumb@crookpublichealthor.gov 541-233-9177
	background: Central Oregon Health Council has funded CCHD with a grant to increase capacity to prevent and respond to sexually transmitted infections in Crook and Jefferson Counties. Deschutes County has adequate resources to address this issue, but Crook and Jefferson Counties have been unable to provide similar levels of outreach, education, and coordinated care. This grant and associated position provides Crook County the opportunity to hire and influence how these programs are implemented in partnership with Jefferson County and other stakeholders. This position is grant funded, and only guaranteed for the duration of the grant, which fully covers the expense of the position and a portion of supervision.
	subject: New Position - Health Strategist III STI Coordinator
	date desired: 1/17 work session; 1/18 court
	Date: 1/10/2023
	presenters: Katie Plumb, Health & Human Services Director
	Legal Review: 
	Elected official: N/A
	budget: Due to the position being vacant for several months FY23 and reclassifying to a lower grade/scale, we will be saving approximately $40,000. 
	Requested by: Katie Plumb, Health & Human Services Director, kplumb@crookpublichealthor.gov, 541-233-9177
	background: With a shortage of nurses and the current inability to competitively recruit nurses to the County, CCHD is seeking to reclassify one RN position to an MA with the goal of being able to recruit and sustain. We are transitioning the Immunization Coordinator role away from an RN position and to this one, in order to create more RN capacity in clinic. This role will also be trained as a medical chaperone to fulfill OAR 847-010-0130.
	subject: Position Reclassification
	date desired: 1/17 work session, 1/18 court
	Date: 1/10/2023
	presenters: Katie Plumb, Health & Human Services Director
	Legal Review: Finance has reviewed for fiscal feasibility and sustainabilityHR has been consulted
	Elected official: N/A
	budget: This position would take the place of an Administrative Clerk, reducing budget impact. The approximate $4,805 difference this year will be covered by Public Health Modernization and COVID funds. Modernization funds will be able to cover the increased cost of this position into the foreseeable future. COVID funds can cover until June 2024. We are exploring billing options to generate additional revenue via this position since they will play a key role in providing clinic services to people who speak Spanish.
	Requested by: Katie Plumb, Health & Human Services Director, kplumb@crookpublichealthor.gov, 541-233-9177
	background: CCHD currently has no bilingual staff, making us reliant on phone and video interpreters to be in compliance with providing medical services in the language each person understands. In order to maintain compliance and increase our quality of service, we have created a position that would need to become certified as a medical interpreter. This position would also help us fulfill a new law requiring medical providers offer a trained medical chaperone during any genital, rectal, or breast examination.
	subject: Position Reclassification
	date desired: 1/17 work session, 1/18 court
	Date: 1/10/2023
	presenters: Katie Plumb, Health & Human Services Director
	Legal Review: Finance has reviewed for fiscal feasibility and sustainabilityHR has been consulted
	Elected official: N/A


